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Registered Office
Clarendon House

2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Units 2003-2006, 20th Floor
Greenfield Tower, Concordia Plaza
1 Science Museum Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Stock Code

Stock Code on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited: 00725

Legal Advisors
Michael Li & Co.

19th Floor, Prosperity Tower
39 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers
Hang Seng Bank

China Construction Bank (Asia)
Dah Sing Bank

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

Principal Registrar and Transfer Office
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Branch Registrar and Transfer Office
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

17M Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Website

http://perennial.todayir.com
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MISSION STATEMENT

7N H

Perennial International Limited is dedicated to maintain the EHEEERATDHNIRMELER « BHIREE
high quality of its products, manufacturing processes and service — E®IE + U NMFETURARNEMS - BRI
to customers and to forge a worldwide reputation as a business &3 @ EEEBLERIE ZELIR -

demanding excellence in all of its operations.

&



The Perennial Group, founded in 1989, manufactures and trades
quality wire harnesses, power cord, power cord sets, cables and
solid wire and plastic resins. The Group's primary markets are
America, Europe, Australia, Mainland China, Japan and Southeast
Asia where it sells to prominent multi-national producers of
electrical and electronic products.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, as at 31st December 2021,
the Group employed 920 full time staff worldwide involved in
management, sales and marketing, shipping, procurement, financial
and accounting, engineering, production and manufacturing. The
Group considers its employees to be its most important asset
while its key values are quality, prudence and integrity.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Perennial International Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to announce the audited consolidated financial results of the
Company, together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st December 2021.

The Group's revenue was HK$373,472,000 (2020:
HK$282,342,000). Profit for the year was HK$13,689,000
compared to loss of HK$19,231,000 for 2020. Earnings per share
was HK$0.069 (2020: loss per share HK$0.097).

Final Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02
per share for the year ended 31st December 2021. The Group did
not pay any dividend for the year ended 31st December 2020.

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be
held on 24th May 2022 (“2022 AGM") and is to be payable on 15th
June 2022 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 31st May 2022.

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

() from Thursday, 19th May 2022 to Tuesday, 24th May 2022,
both days inclusive and during which period no share transfer
will be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
eligibility to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
18th May 2022.

(i) from 1st June 2022 to 6th June 2022, both days inclusive
and during which period no share transfer will be effected,
for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to
the proposed final dividend. In order to establish entitlements
to the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later that 4:30 p.m. on 31st May
2022.
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Business Review

The Group's revenue increased by 32% to HK$373.5 million in
this financial year 2021. The surge in revenue was mainly due to
increased orders from major customers as the Group adopted
series of proactive measures in respond to the ongoing Sino-US
trade conflicts and uncertainties of the prolonged pandemic.

Sales of power cords accounted for 58% (2020: 61%), wire
harness recorded 33% (2020: 32%) while cables, wires and plastic
resins accounted for remaining 9% (2020: 7%) of the Group’s
revenue.

The gross margin increased slightly from 18.7% in 2020 to 21.4%
in 2021. It has been an achievement of the Group to maintain
operational efficiency while facing all the mounting uncertainties
in supply chain, logistic and material costs during the year under
review.

The Group recorded a net profit margin of 3.7% in 2021 compared
to negative net profit margin 6.8% in 2020. The growth in net
profit were mainly due increase in sales revenues as well as higher
gross margins, complimented with lower operating expenses as
there was no impairment of trade receivables compared to the
previous year loss which were mainly due to a decrease in fair
value of investment property, land and buildings in Hong Kong and
Vietnam of approximately HK$4.2 million; and impairment of trade
receivables of approximately HK$15.7 million.

Despite certain pandemic related restrictions imposed by the local
authorities during the year under review, the factory in Vietnam
operated accordingly. The factory construction in Quang Ngai,
Vietnam was completed in November 2021, further internal
renovation, new equipment and machinery installations works are
due for completion in the first quarter of 2022, thus we expect the
cable manufacturing section to be fully operational by April 2022.

The Sino-US trade disputes posed significant challenges for
the Group’s China factories in 2021. The quest to shift further
production away from China for North America destined goods led
to lesser utilisation of the Group’s mainland production facilities
resulted in the impairment of HK$8.27 million on the Group's
property, plant and equipment in Mainland China during the year
under review.

During the year 2021, COVID-19 pandemic and the emergence of
new variants continued to affect material costs, supply chain and
deliveries to customers. The Group had to order and purchased
materials, produced finished goods and shipped in advance
resulting in 37.7% increase in inventory for the year ended
31st December 2021 to HK$161.5 million compared to HK$117.4
million in 2020.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FREHREE)

The increase in revenue led to an increase in trade receivables from
HK$58.6 million in 2020 to HK$78.0 million in 2021. During the
year under review, precautionary steps taken included receivables
from a few major customers are covered by credit insurance.
While the financial impacts for the strategies in place resulted in
bank borrowings from HK$45.7 million in 2020 to HK$74.4 million
as at 31st December 2021, mainly applied into financing both the
inventory and trade receivables.

Future Prospect

Now in its third year, the COVID-19 pandemic continues to
impact business activities and shows little sign of ending in the
foreseeable future, causing unstable supply chain, excessive
freight charges and fluctuating material costs. As at the date of this
report, the full market impact of the new Omicron variant and the
war recently started in Ukraine are yet to be felt.

Although our business are immuned to the effects of the
pandemic, trade conflicts and war in Eastern Europe, but we are
confident that our “procure ahead, produce ahead, and ship ahead”
strategies implemented couple years ago complimented with our
recently enlarged production capacities in Vietnam and continuous
launch of newly developed products will enable the Group to
continue to maintain our growth impetus amid a rapidly changing
business environment.

The Group’s continuing success in meeting demand by
working closely with our clients underpin our expectation of
further improvement in 2022. The Group therefore moves into
another new year with cautious optimisms. The strong product
development capabilities of our China factory along with proven
sourcing and procurement competence has placed the Group in a
readiness position to respond to potential market disruption.

The return of face-to-face meetings with our customers to expand
business is contingent on the success of measures taken to control
the spread of COVID-19’s Omicron and possibly other variants.
Similar to 2021, there are huge uncertainties in how the situation
will unfold as both our China and Vietnam factories recently had to
halt operations temporarily due to pandemic restrictions imposed
by local authorities.

We are confident as the Group is well placed to overcome
ongoing and new challenges. We believe having weathered the
unprecedented effects of the pandemic in 2021, the Group moved
into 2022 with cautious optimism, prepared to both capture new
opportunities arising from anticipated gradual market recovery and
navigate through continuing disruptions.
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Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ rights and
enhancing corporate governance standard. As a result, the Group
has established the Compliance Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee to adhere to
the best practice.

Social Responsibility

The Group's factories are regularly subject to factory audit by
multinational enterprises. The factory audit served as a catalyst to
enhance the Group’s standard on corporate social responsibility.

Moreover, the Group holds a strong belief in corporate social
responsibility. So the Group continues to participate in and support
community activities in both Hong Kong and Mainland China.

With regards to the Group's ESG performance, please refer to
the Group's ESG report which will be available on the Company’s
website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock Exchange's
website before 30th April 2022.

Vote of Thanks

As we move forward into 2022, we wish to thank all our
stakeholders — most notably the clients, shareholders, suppliers
and employees — for their resilience, dedication and enthusiasm
during these turbulent times. It is with their continued support that
the Group will succeed in growing its strength and delivering even
greater value in the new financial year and for many more years to
come.

By Order of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st December 2021, the consolidated short-term borrowings
of the Group was approximately HK$74,372,000. The borrowings
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The bank balances
and cash amounted to approximately HK$19,308,000.

As at 31st December 2021, the Group's trade and bill receivables
balance was approximately HK$78,010,000, representing 20.9% of
the year's revenue of approximately HK$373,472,000. The Group
adopted a stringent credit policy to minimize credit risk.

As at 31st December 2021, the Group's gearing ratio, which is
calculated by dividing total borrowings to total equity was 13.1%
(2020: 8.3%)).

The Group’s average cost of borrowings was 1.60% per annum for
the year ended 31st December 2021 (2020: 2.88%).

Capital Structure

As at 31st December 2021, the consolidated shareholders’ equity
of the Group was approximately HK$569,058,000, representing an
increase of 3.6% over that of the previous year. The debt to equity
ratio, which is calculated by dividing total liabilities to shareholders’
equity, was approximately 27.9%.

Capital Expenditure and Material

Acquisitions
During the year under review, capital expenditure approximate to
HK$9,210,000.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31st December 2021, the Group's trade and loan finance
facilities amounted to approximately HK$128,040,000, which
were secured by legal charges over certain land and buildings and
investment properties of the Group with a total carrying value of
HK$118,700,000.

Segment Information

During the year under review, Hong Kong, America and Mainland
China continued to be the Group's major markets, accounting
for approximately 13%, 56% and 21% of the Group’s total sales
respectively. The remaining 10% of sales were generated from
customers located in Japan and other countries.
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Employees’ Remuneration Policy

As at 31st December 2021, the Group employed 920 full time
management, administrative and production staff worldwide.
The Group follows market practice on remuneration packages.
Employee’s remuneration is reviewed and determined by senior
management annually depending on the employee’s performance,
experience and industry practice. The total amount of employee’s
remuneration was set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements in this report. The Group invests in its human capital. In
addition to on-job training, the Group adopts policies of continuous
professional training programs.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
All foreseeable foreign exchange risks of the Group are
appropriately managed and hedged, if necessary.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31st December 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is firmly committed to statutory and regulatory
corporate governance standards with emphasis on transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness.

The Corporate Governance Code

The Directors confirm that the Company has fully complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") attached to the Listing Rules as Appendix 14, and adopted
recommended best practices set out in the Code whenever
appropriate. During the year, Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, Chairman,
was unable to hold a meeting with the Independent Non-Executive
Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors due to
other prior business engagements.

The Board

The Board’'s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholder value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group and
supervises executive management to whom the responsibility of
managing the day-to-day operation of the Group is delegated. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in integrity, due
diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

The Board oversees the Company in a responsible and effective
manner. It has adopted formal terms of reference which details
its functions and responsibilities. Its main responsibilities include,
but not limited to, ensuring competent management, approving
objectives, strategies and business plans, ensuring prudent
conduct of operations within laws and approved policies, ensuring
and monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs. Day-
to-day management of the Group is delegated to the Executive
Directors or the officer in charge of each division who are given
clear directions as to his/her powers and are required to report back
to the Board. Functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management are reviewed periodically. The Directors, as members
of the Board, jointly share responsibility for the proper direction
of the Company. The Company has formal service contract with
each Director setting out the key terms and conditions of his/her
appointment.
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The Board (Continued)

The Board currently consists of eight (8) members whose details
are set out on pages 28 to 29 of this report. It meets quarterly and
holds specific meetings as and when they are deemed necessary.
The Board held four (4) meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2021. Notices of Board meetings were given to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to the date of the meetings with
the agenda and any accompanying Board papers sent at least
three days before the date of the meetings. All Directors are given
the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings, recording
in sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached,
are kept by the Company Secretary and sent to the Directors or
the committee members (as appropriate) for their comment and
records within reasonable time after the meeting is held. They are
also available for inspection by the Directors at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director. A record of the Directors’
attendance at Board meetings is set out on page 23 of this report.

The Group provides extensive background information about its
history, mission and businesses to the Directors. The Directors are
also provided with the opportunity to visit the Group’s operational
facilities and meet with the management to gain a better
understanding of its business operations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the year, all Directors, namely, Messrs Mon Chung Hung,
Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, Mon Tiffany, Koo Di An,
Louise, Lau Chun Kay, Lee Chung Nai, Jones and Chung Kit Ying,
received regular briefings and updates on the Group’s business,
operations, risk management and corporate governance matters.
Materials on new or changes to salient laws and regulations
applicable to the Group were provided to the Directors. They also
attended regulatory update sessions and seminars on relevant
topics. All Directors are requested to provide the Company with
their respective training record pursuant to the Code.

The Board has separate and independent access to the senior
management and the Company Secretary at all times. The Board
and each Board Committee also has access to independent
professional advice where appropriate.
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The Board (Continued)

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors and the senior management of the Group for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and area of
responsibility, the role of the Chairman is separate from that of the
Chief Executive Officer. Ms. Koo Di An, Louise is the chairman
of the Company and Mr. Mon Chung Hung is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
established and set out in writing. The Chairman manages the
Board and is responsible for ensuring that adequate information is
provided to the Directors in a timely manner and all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings, while the
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing strategies,
policies, and for conducting the Group's businesses.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
Directors that have served longest on the Board must retire at each
annual general meeting, and may offer themselves for re-election.
Notwithstanding that the Non-Executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of one to three years, they are also subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years as other
Directors do. To enhance accountability, any further re-appointment
of an Independent Non-Executive Director, who has served the
Board for more than nine years, is subject to a separate resolution
to be passed by the shareholders. In addition, Directors who are
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment
according to the Company’s Bye-laws.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company
confirms receipt of a written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors for confirmation of his
independence to the Company. The Company considers all its
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Company’s and the Group’'s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors should prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, with
supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary. The Board’s
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as
to information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.
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Board Committees

The Board has established four (4) committees, each of them
having specific terms of reference, to consider matters relating to
specialized areas and to advise the Board or, where appropriate,
to decide on behalf of the Board on such matters. Details of these
committees and their principal terms of reference are as follows:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1st April 2003. Its current
members include three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors
and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company's website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices,
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors and any
question of resignation or dismissal, their audit fees, matters
relating to the independence of the external auditors; meeting
with the external auditors to discuss the nature and scope of the
audit, and matters of concern when requested to do so by the
external auditors; reviewing the interim financial report and annual
consolidated financial statements before they are submitted to
the Board; discussing problems and reservations arising from the
interim review and final audit, and any other matters the external
auditors may wish to discuss, and reviewing the external auditors’
letter to the management and the management’'s response;
considering any major investigation findings on internal control
and risk management systems matters as delegated by the Board
or on its own initiative and the management’s response to these
findings and reviewing arrangements which employees may use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control, risk management systems or
other matters.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year with the external
auditors. The Audit Committee held two (2) meetings during the
year ended 31st December 2021. An attendance record of its
members at the Audit Committee meetings is set out on page 23
of this report.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim financial report
and the audited financial results of the Group for the year ended
31st December 2021 and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee also reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control
and risk management systems and made recommendations to
the Board. The Board has engaged an outsourced consultant to
perform internal control review services for the Group.

The Audit Committee has full and direct access to the outsourced
internal audit consultant, reviews the reports on all audits
performed and monitors the audit performance. The Audit
Committee also reviews the adequacy of the scope, functions,
competency and resources of the outsourced internal audit
functions.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members include three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the Group's remuneration policies, determining the
specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors and
senior management, including terms of salary, discretionary
bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension rights, compensation
payments and other long-term incentive schemes, and making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration of the Non-
Executive Directors and senior management. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee setting out its authority
and responsibilities are available on the Company’s website at
http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock Exchange's website.

The Remuneration Committee met once (1) in the year of 2021.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the
policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior
management, assessed the performance of the Executive
Directors and approved the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors. An attendance record of its members at the
Remuneration Committee meeting is set out on page 23 of this
report.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members include three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Board adopts a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out its approach to achieve and maintain
its diversity through consideration of a number of measurable
objectives including skills, professional experience, cultural and
educational background, gender, age, as well as other attributes
and strengths that are required for the Company’s business from
time to time. Board appointments are made on a merit basis and
candidates are considered against objective selection criteria, with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including, without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational backgrounds,
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis, reviewing the candidates’ qualification and competence
and the Board Diversity Policy, assessing the independence
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment and re-appointment
of Directors and the requirement on board diversity, so as to ensure
that all nominations are fair and transparent. Having taken into
account the above objective criteria, the Nomination Committee
was of the view that the Company has a diverse Board. The
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee setting
out its authority and responsibilities are available on the Company’s
website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock Exchange's
website.

The Nomination Committee met once (1) in the year of 2021.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the
procedures and criteria which should be adopted by them in
nominating candidates for directorship and agreed that such
criteria should include the candidates’ professional background,
their financial and commercial experience and their past track
record with other listed companies (if any). Candidates who satisfy
the relevant criteria are then short-listed by the chairman of the
Nomination Committee before their nominations are proposed
to the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
subsequently meets to select the final candidates and submit its
recommendation to the Board for its final approval. An attendance
record of its members at the Nomination Committee meeting is
set out on page 23 of this report.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee was established on 25th November
2005. Its current members include four (4) Executive Directors,
one (1) Non-Executive Director and three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors, who are:

Executive Directors

Mr. MON Chung Hung
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky
Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

The Compliance Committee is mainly responsible for (i) reviewing
corporate communication issued by the Company so as to ensure
compliance in every respect with the listing requirements contained
in the Listing Rules; and (ii) reviewing transactions entered into by
the Company so as to ensure compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to the Company whether of Hong Kong
or elsewhere. To enhance corporate governance, the Compliance
Committee was also delegated with the responsibilities of (i)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
(iii) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and (iv) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report. Where necessary, the Compliance
Committee would seek professional advice in respect of the
requirements of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations so as to improve the existing compliance procedures of
the Company.

The Compliance Committee held one (1) meeting during the year
ended 31st December 2021. During the meeting, the committee
members discussed the recent amendments to the Listing Rules
relating to corporate governance and resolved that more resources
should be allocated for meeting the increasingly stringent
requirements of the regulatory authorities. It was also suggested
all future amendments to the Listing Rules should be circulated to
members of the senior management so that they all understand
and can help the Company to comply with its obligations under the
Listing Rules and seminars on Listing Rules updates and corporate
governance practices should be arranged for members of the
senior management and other interested Directors. An attendance
record of its members at the Compliance Committee meeting is
set out on page 23 of this report.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations. The procedures provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The Board has engaged an outsourced internal audit consultant to
perform independent internal control review services. Thereafter,
the outsourced consultant has assisted the Group to perform a
review of the effectiveness of internal control system for certain
selected processes. The assessment results and proposed
improvement recommendations were reported to the Audit
Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed annually
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions and, in particular, consider
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function for the year ended 31st December
2021. Based on the findings of the outsourced internal audit
consultant and the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board
considers that the Group's internal control system is effective
and adequate. Areas for improvement identified and appropriate
measures taken so as to provide assurance that key business and
operational risks are identified and managed.

The key procedures that the Board has established to provide
effective internal control are as follows:

(@) a comprehensive monthly management reporting system
is in place providing financial and operational performance
indicators to the management, and the relevant financial
information for reporting and disclosure purpose;

(b)  management structure with defined roles, responsibilities
and reporting lines are established. Delegated authorities are
documented and communicated; and

(c) system and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
manage and control risks including liquidity, credit, market,
business, regulatory, operational and reputational risks that
may have an impact on the Group.
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Risk Management Function

The Group has established a robust risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee and Senior
Management of the Group. The Board determines the nature and
extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring the
overall effectiveness of risk management. The Group identifies
key risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group's objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified
risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans
are then established by the risk owners to manage the risks to
acceptable level.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed annually
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system for the
year ended 31st December 2021. Based on the findings and the
comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considers that the
Group's risk management system is effective and adequate.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors
subject to endorsement by the Board and final approval and
authorization by shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
The Audit Committee assesses the external auditors, taking into
account factors such as the performance and quality of the audit
and the objectivity and independence of auditors. The existing
auditors of the Company are PricewaterhouseCoopers who were
first appointed in 1997.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Group was charged HK$1,483,000 and HK$728,000 by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31st December 2021. The
non- auditing services mainly consist of taxation services.

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the accounts department, is responsible
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the Board has adopted generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong and complied with accounting standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and applied
consistently.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors are set out in
the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 35 to 42 of this annual
report.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
and employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, they
had complied with the required standards of the said code during
the year.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights
and all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to
the Company’s Bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to attend and
vote at a general meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint
another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. In
addition, shareholders who hold not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. The
requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company, and may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more requisitionists. If the Directors do
not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three (3)
months from the said date.

Moreover, shareholders who hold not less than one-twentieth
of the paid up capital of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to put forward
a resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at an annual general meeting. The Company shall not
be bound to give notice of the proposed resolution or circulate a
statement with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution to shareholders unless (a) a copy of the requisition
signed by the requisitionists, or two or more copies which between
them contain the signatures of all the requisitionists, is deposited
at the registered office of the Company not less than six (6) weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one (1) week before the meeting
in the case of any other requisition and (b) there is deposited or
tendered with the requisition a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto. If, however,
after a copy of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution has
been deposited at the registered office of the Company, an annual
general meeting is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the
copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required as referred to above shall be deemed to have been
properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen,
any member from the respective committees, must attend the
annual general meetings of the Company to address shareholders’
queries. External auditors shall also be invited to attend the
Company's annual general meetings and are available to assist
the Directors in addressing queries from shareholders relating to
the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of their
auditors’ report.

For each substantially separate issue at a general meeting, a
separate resolution would be proposed. Resolutions put to the
vote at any general meeting (other than those on procedural and
administrative matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding
the conduct of the poll are explained to the shareholders at the
commencement of each general meeting, and questions (if any)
from shareholders regarding the voting procedures would be
answered.

Investor Relations

The Company believes in regular and timely communication with
shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders understand
its business better and the way the Company operates.

To promote effective communication with the public at large,
the Company maintains a website on which comprehensive
information about the Company, its major businesses, financial
information and particulars of Directors are posted. The Company'’s
publications, including press releases, announcements, annual and
interim reports, shareholders circulars are being made available on
this website (http://perennial.todayir.com).

In addition, shareholders who have any enquiries regarding the
Company may send their enquiries in writing to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary who will then forward the same to the
Board and/or the relevant Board committees for response (where
appropriate). The above policy will be reviewed on a regular basis
to ensure effective communication with the shareholders.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lai Wing Hong is the company secretary of the Company. He
has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
financial year ended 31st December 2021.
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Directors’ Attendance at Board, Audit EEREETE EXZEET - Hf
Committee, Remuneration Committee, ZEZ - EXZET  EREES
Nomination Committee, Compliance REFRAEzHETTHE
Committee and General Meetings

Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ Compliance
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Ezg ENZEE yizEe REZEE ERZEE
L L L 6 EE BRAE
Total number of meetings held ~ EZE-T-—F
during the year ended +-A=t-H
31st December 2021 EERE(TZ
EE 4 2 1 1 1 1
Number of meetings attended: ~ HEEZNE -
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. MON Chung Hung ARIERE
(Chief Executive Officer & (7TREH R
Deputy Chairman) %E) 4 N/A T N/A T N/A T 1 1
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco B EE 4 N/A T8 N/A T N/A T 1 1
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky REBIT 4 N/A TER N/A T N/A TiEF 1 1
Ms. MON Tiffany RERTT 4 NA TEE N/A TiEF N/A TiE 1 1
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise BlEar(2E)
(Chairman) 4 2 1 1 1 1
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay SIRELS 4 2 1 1 1 1
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones FRERE 4 2 1 1 1 1
Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying E24ur 4 2 1 1 1 1
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERE

The Board submits their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2021.

Principal Activities and Geographical

Analysis of Operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and

EEEENREEEHEREE T —
=+ RUEFEZ EEZGR M BRE -

—F+=-A

FTEXEBRREB 2 HED N

ARBZ EBEBR/IRERR - BB AR EEZWK
SHENBEERRERERER - WBARIZE

trading of electric cable and wire products. The activities of the &R A B IEHREN 29 -
subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.
An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by ANFEEREBHEE D 2 AEBEBRREOTEL
geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated  4r& BTSRRI FES ©
financial statements.
Five Years Financial Summary hFERBYUE
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the  NEREJIAEBEBTRETMBKFE 2 ¥4 - BE
last five financial years is set out below: LaEme
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--F C"T_EHF —NEF E— )\ E—+5F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T T FT
Revenue Was 373,472 282,342 301,357 355,744 364,401
Profit/(loss) for the year &% F|,(E518) 13,689 (19,231) (13,198) (1,760) 19,283
Total assets BEE 727,733 685,978 714,879 732,950 692,770
Total liabilities FE=R 158,675 136,698 (152,355) (154,865) (130,353)
Total equity B 569,058 549,280 562,524 578,085 562,417

Analysis of the Group’s Performance
An analysis of the Group's performance is set forth in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 9 of this report.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group's major suppliers and customers respectively, classified
by individual entity, are as follows:

AEEZEBRRDH
AEE 2 EHERRH BN AREEOEOALE
R -

TEHEERER
ARENAREZ IROEERAS | IR
SRZRBRHEEBHLDFILT -

Purchases i

— the largest supplier — A ER

— five largest suppliers combined — A RHEEER
Sales HE

— the largest customer —&AEF

— five largest customers combined —hAREPERT

24%
63%

27%
69%




Major Suppliers and Customers (Continued)
None of the directors, their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had
an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Board shall also take into
account the following factors of the Company and its subsidiaries
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

) operating and financial results;

) cash flow situation;

) business conditions and strategies;

) future operations and earnings;

) taxation considerations;

capital requirements and expenditure plans;

interests of shareholders;

) restrictions under the Bermuda Laws and the Company’s
memorandum if association and the bye-laws of the
Company; and

(i) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

a
b
c
d
e
f

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

9
h

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 43 of this report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02
per ordinary share. The recommended final dividend is subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties held for the Group’s main
operations are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share issued in the year

No new shares were issued during the year. Details of shares
issued as at 31st December 2021 are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 31st December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the laws of Bermuda,
amounted to HK$23,200,000. In addition, the Company’s
contributed surplus, amounting to HK$62,548,000 as at 31st
December 2021, is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of the contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the
net realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its share capital and share premium
account. The Company’s share premium account with a balance of
HK$15,885,000 as at 31st December 2021 is distributable in the
form of fully-paid bonus shares.

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$882,000.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the

Company'’s Listed Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, more than 25% of the
Company'’s issued shares was held by the public as at 22nd March
2022, being the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, in accordance with Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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Analysis of Bank Loans and Other

Borrowings

The Group’s bank loans and other borrowings as at 31st December
2021, in accordance with the repayment schedule (without taking
into account any repayment on demand clause), are repayable over
the following periods:
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Trust receipt

Bank loans loans Total
BITER SRREER i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEIT FiET FAET
Within 1 year 15K 60,000 14,372 74,372
Directors =2
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of RAFEEANEEAHERAHAQAFZEEN T ¢
this report were:
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. MON Chung Hung FIREES A
(Chief Executive Officer & Deputy Chairman) (TTIBAEE RS £ )
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco IR E
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky TREBmZT
Ms. MON Tiffany HEREZ L
Non-Executive Director EHITES
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman) BT (£E)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BFHITES
Mr. LAU Chun Kay DR S
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones TREEE
Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying BRETT

Ms. MON Tiffany, Ms. KOO Di An, Louise and Ms. CHUNG Kit
Ying will retire in accordance with clause 111 of the Company’s
Bye-laws at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company. All of them, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive and independent
non-executive director is not more than three years and subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management
The biographical details of the directors and senior management
of the Company are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mon Chung Hung, aged 71, is the founder of the Group,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Deputy Chairman, an Executive
Director, Authorised Representative and a member of the
compliance committee of the Board. Mr. Mon has over 43 years of
experience in the electric cable and wire industry. He is responsible
for the Group’s overall strategic planning and policy making. Mr.
Mon is a director of Spector Holdings Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is also the husband of Ms. Koo Di
An, Louise and the father of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon
Tiffany.

Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, aged 62, is an Executive Director,
Authorised Representative and a member of the compliance
committee of the Board. He joined the Group in 1989. Mr. Siu has
over 33 years of experience in the electric cable and wire industry.
Mr. Siu is also the Sales Director of the Group and is responsible
for sales of the Group's products and product development.

Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, aged 47, is an Executive Director and a
member of the compliance committee of the Board. She graduated
from the Central Queensland University in Australia with a Bachelor
of Communications degree. She joined the Group in 2004. As the
Marketing Executive, she participates in developing marketing
strategies. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and Ms.
Koo Di An, Louise, and the elder sister of Ms. Mon Tiffany.

Ms. Mon Tiffany, aged 41, is an Executive Director and a member
of the compliance committee of the Board. She holds a bachelor’s
double major degree in economics and management from the
University of Sydney, Australia, Diploma in Company Direction from
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and “RSSGB" certification from
Six Sigma Institute. She joined the Group in 2002. As the Marketing
Communications Manager, she coordinates marketing strategies
and is also responsible for the information system of the Company.
She is the daughter of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and Ms. Koo Di An,
Louise, and the younger sister of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management (Continued)

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, aged 70, is the Chairman, a Non- Executive
Director, the chairman of the compliance committee and a
member of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees
of the Board. She joined the Group in 1989. Ms. Koo is a director
of Spector Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. She is also the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and the
mother of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon Tiffany.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chun Kay, B.Sc., MBA, M.A., aged 73, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees and a member of the compliance
committee of the Board. He joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Lau is
a registered professional engineer and holds a master’s degree
in business administration and a bachelor’'s degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Hong Kong, and a master
degree in history and a master degree in Philosophy from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lau is a Life President of the
Hong Kong Electrical Contractors Association, and a past President
and current Secretary General of The Federation of Asian and
Pacific Electrical Contractors Associations. He is also the Executive
Director of the Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical
Contractors. He has over 50 years of experience in management
and engineering.

Mr. Lee Chung Nai, Jones, aged 73, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and compliance committees of the Board. He joined
the Group in 2010. Mr. Lee has over 39 years of experience in
international trade in toys, among which Mr. Lee had also operated
a toys factory with 2,000 workers in China for 10 years. Mr. Lee
had also operated a subsidiary company in Hong Kong for a listed
company in Australia. Mr. Lee has his own toy company.

Ms. Chung Kit Ying, aged 47, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the audit, remuneration, nomination
and compliance committee of the Board. She joined the Group
in December 2017. Ms. Chung obtained a degree of Bachelor of
Business Administration and a degree of Master of Science in
Finance from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1997 and
2007, respectively. Ms. Chung has worked in an international firm
of certified public accountants and the finance department of a
listed group, and has over 23 years of experience in accounting
and auditing. Ms. Chung is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA").
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Seto Sai Cheong Paul, aged 60, was the Chief Financial Officer
("CFQ") of the Company. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA, a
fellow member of the ACCA, and a fellow member of The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong (“TIHK"). Mr. Seto is also a Certified
Tax Advisor of TIHK. Mr. Seto is responsible for financial and
accounting management, corporate governance and administration
of the Company. He joined the Group in September 2018. Mr.
Seto has over 31 years of experience in accounting and taxation
including senior financial executives of three main board listed
companies in Hong Kong and chief financial officer of multinational
corporation. He resigned on 5th November 2021.

Mr. Wong Andy Tze On, aged 54, is our newly appointed CFO.
He joined the Group on 1st November 2021. Mr. Wong has over
24 years of experience in financial management of multinational
corporations. He was formally an executive director and the CFO
of a locally listed electronic manufacturing group with operations in
the US, and production facilities on Mainland China and Indonesia
from 1997 to 2019. From August 2020 to September 2021, Mr.
Wong was the CFO, authorised representative and Company
Secretary of another listed company. Mr. Wong holds a business
degree in accounting from Curtin University of Technology,
Western Australia. He is a member of the Australian Society
of Certified Practising Accountants, the Association of Chinese
Internal Auditors and the Pan-Asia Risk and Insurance Management
Association.

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu, aged 50, is the Group's Assistant
Manufacturing Manager and is responsible for sales and marketing
activities. He joined the Group in 1997, holds a Bachelor degree
and Master degree in Mechanical Engineering and has over 24
years of experience in the electric cable and wire industry.

Mr. Lai Wing Hong, aged 44, is the Finance Manager and Company
Secretary of the Company. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA
and a fellow member of the ACCA. He holds a Bachelor (Honours)
Degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a Master Degree in Business Administration from the Holmes
Institute. Mr. Lai joined the Group in March 2019 and is responsible
for finance functions and the Company Secretary work. He has
over 20 years of experience in auditing and accounting including
being the company secretary and the senior financial executive of a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements and Contracts
that are Significant in Relation to the

Group’s Business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group's business to which its holding company or
the Company’s subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director
of the Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31st December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFQ™)), which were required (i) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii)
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
(the “Shares”)
Long Positions in Shares
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Total
interests
Number of shares as % of the
REEE relevant
Personal Family Corporate Total issued share
Name interests interests interests interests capital
R (L AHRR
B BITIRA
®H BAER RikfEs EE R BmRER ZEDH
MON Chung Hung - - 147,252,000 147,252,000 74.01%
TR (note 1)
(B5E1)
KOO Di An, Louise - 147,252,000 - 147,252,000 74.01%
FEIE % (note 2)
(M7E2)
LAU Chun Kay 138,000 - - 138,000 0.07%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(the “Shares”) (Continued)

Long Positions in Shares (Continued)

Note 1: The 147,252,000 Shares were held in the name of Spector
Holdings Limited (“Spector Holdings"”) which is beneficially owned
as to 99.9% by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining
0.1% by Ms. Koo Di An, Louise. Therefore, Mr. Mon is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Spector Holdings. Each of Mr.
Mon and Ms. Koo is a director of Spector Holdings.

Note 2: Ms. Koo is the wife of Mr. Mon and is thus deemed to be

interested in the Shares in which Mr. Mon is deemed to be

interested.

Interest in Shares of Associated Corporation of the Company

Name of associated

EERFETHRAEBEAEZRS
MHERDRES 2 EE R AR (F)

RRFFR0.107BT 2 EBR (KR

(%&)

AR 252 (E)

BiFET © b 147,252,000 A% 19 LA Spector Holdings
Limited ([ Spector Holdings |) & & &6 + %
AEEHRRELERBEBRE L ISR ESHE
£99.9% K0.1% - At REEWRABES
Spector HoldingsFT#5 %10 2 # 2k - A ER
A%z 1159 ASpector Holdings 2 &% ©

Mizt2 : BXLTARHRILENE T  HEREARALEW

BRERRERNROPEEER -

RAEATRBEEZRDZFR

Approximate %
of shareholding
in associated
corporation

Name of Director corporation Capacity HEEEEE
EspAg HEEE AR 514 ZREZADL
Mr. Mon Spector Holdings Beneficial owner 99.9%
wEAE ERFFEA
Ms. Koo Spector Holdings Beneficial owner 0.1%
REZ+ BERFAA

All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save as
disclosed above, as at 31st December 2021, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO or to be entered in the register referred to
therein pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO.

Other than those disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31st December 2021 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or any of their associates to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the
Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st December 2021, as far as known to the Directors, the
following person (other than the Directors and chief executives
of the Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would be required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:
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REARARNRAFENELCM EHRRSORE

Total

interests

Number of Shares as % of the

RoEE relevant

Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share

Name interests interests interests interests interests capital

R {5 A RA

E2EITRAE

HE BAER EQ et EERER HithfEzs AR ZEDE

Spector Holdings 147,252,000 - - 147,252,000 74.01%
Limited (note 1)
(B5E1)

Note 1: Spector Holdings is owned as t0 99.9% by Mr. Mon and as to the ~ [ff#F 1 : Spector Holdings & LA RBZ T DRI A

remaining 0.1% by Ms. Koo.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save as
disclosed above, as at 31st December 2021, the Directors are not
aware of any other person who had an interest or a short position
in the Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

99.9% £0.1% °
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Directors’ Interest in Competing Business
None of the Directors has an interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

Business Review
Business review of the Group is set forth in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 6 to 9 of this report.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors of
the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise) or an
associated company (if made by the Company).

Subsequent Event
Details of subsequent event are disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2022

EENHFERER 2B
FERREN AR BN F R TR 2
BESZ N

E i E)
AR EETS BN AR S FOEOH 2 EEHE -

B ERTRIEMRI

AR R B A B RS B SR - 15
MR EREIE (THRBRAR TR
BRARANHBB AR (B AR AT L) 2
EFZERTER -

HREE
BRE B E L HERENG A REN T -

R BUEm
EARBARCEHBRRRAERHDERNE
% - BRI RTRRRE AR R - B
BRI -

REREES
E
otk

FE T _F=A-+=H



Annual Report 2021 £ R @

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Perennial International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Perennial International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 43 to 127, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December 2021,

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31st December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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Basis for Opinion (Continued)
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with

the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

ERNERGE)

By
REEBEHAARRANELEHDERTA)
(ATBSTEIFRI]) - RIVELH HEE TEE
SERILEEANE E5 (i Tis

BRENEE

FRET FEERERMANERALE - RASHAH
RAVBHMANEIRAIERNTIA - BLRHE
ERMEFERGAVFRE LD AS RRETR
B o RS HELERERHEFNER -

These

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to:

° Valuation for land and buildings and investment properties °

BAER T HERI O ERETFEEHER ¢
T RETF RIREMENGE

Key Audit Matter
AREETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ET N EEERENSE

Valuation for land and buildings and investment
properties

T REBFRIREYRNMEE

Refer to notes 2.6, 2.7, 4.2, 15(c) and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BLHRAMIEHMERNTE26,2.7, 4.2, 15(c) )16 °

We obtained an understanding of the management's
internal control and assessment process of valuation for
land and buildings and investment properties and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors.

B TRERBEN T MEF RIREMENBENAEDEZE
HIREHERAZ - WiBBRE B A E A E b E A R R E
ZMRE - FHE T ERERANES R o

We assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuers by verifying their qualifications, discussing
the scope of their work and reviewing the terms of their

engagements.
BV TR ERTR B ERE ) - BEE N REFEMN - 8%
EHEER BMHENREMETH IIEHE R FHMEZBER

We carried out procedures to test whether property-
specific standing data supplied to the valuers by
management reflected the underlying property records
held by the Group.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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FRETEEGE)

Key Audit Matter
BREESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ET NAEERERENSE

The Group owns land and buildings in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Vietnam for office premises and
manufacturing plants respectively, and owns investment
properties in Hong Kong for investment purpose (together,
the “Properties”). These are classified as property, plant
and equipment and investment properties according
to their use and, their carrying values are HK$345.4
million and HK$43.1 million as at 31st December 2021
respectively. For the year ended 31st December 2021,
revaluation deficit of HK$3.4 million relating to land and
buildings classified as property, plant and equipment
and revaluation gain of HK$0.1 million relating to the
investment properties are recorded in the consolidated
income statement, and a revaluation deficit of HK$7.0
million relating to land and buildings classified as property,
plant and equipment is recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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The valuations of these Properties are inherently subjective
due to, among other factors, the individual nature of each
property and its location.

AR (KR ERE)ZSEYMENERME REMEME - %%
MERLERRFETEM -

The valuations of these Properties were carried out by
independent professional qualified valuers.

FZEMENGEDRBLEES ERMEEMETT -

We assessed the reasonableness of the key assumptions
and inputs used by the valuers by performing market
research on comparable transactions available for
properties located in Hong Kong and the average cost
of construction and useful life for properties located in
Mainland China and Vietnam. Where the assumptions
applied by the valuers were outside our expected range or
otherwise unusual, we questioned the matters with the
valuers and management and obtained additional evidence
to support the explanations received.
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We concluded that the assumptions used in the valuations
were supportable in light of the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

FRETEEGE)

Key Audit Matter
BRESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMWET NAEERERENSE

Properties in Hong Kong were valued using the market
approach where comparison based on prices realized
on actual sales of comparable properties was made and
adjusted for key difference in key attributes such as size,
character and location. Factory buildings in Mainland China
and Vietnam were valued using depreciated replacement
cost approach with reference to the cost to reproduce
or replace in accordance with current construction costs
for similar buildings and structures in the locality, with
allowance for accrued depreciation as evidenced by
observed condition or obsolescence present.
URBEBHNZEMEATISEETHE  ERFLEALED
FHRZELHFEZRAR(PINEREAR ) - EE R )BT E
ML E R - 2R BIARE R e THEFHE - 1]
EAERAM R B AR T REENBENE - BEBETE
B MRNKARZE  NRAWESEXNEETE - Wit A
IRFEIR DA SR E TR 2 FERH AT E 44 -

The significance of the estimates and judgements involved
warrants specific audit focus in this area.
HRMEERER IS REOEG KA+ HEE - HEFEA
BHEZIEEPRILEE -




Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in Perennial
International Limited 2021 annual report (but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon),
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the
environmental, social and governance report (the “ESG report”) for
the year 2021, which is expected to be made available to us after
that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the ESG report for the year 2021, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

ERB(BBEEADETEBED - B8
T HEERAE - R T BXREEE - B

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
BUZERRE (&)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

& AEE 32
:én""/'_l? SE® *13;2
For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 FBT FAET
Revenue Was 5 373,472 282,342
Cost of sales SHE AR (293,554) (229,573)
Gross profit EF 79,918 52,769
Other income Hales 6 7,735 6,869
Distribution expenses DAL (9,084) (8,323)
Administrative expenses TER Y (58,032) (51,825)
Other operating expenses, net EAh S F 5 7 (4,906) (3,468)
Reversal of impairment loss/ H 5 IR RERE
(impairment loss) on trade receivables BE (GHERE
E1E) 3.1(v) 727 (15,719)
Operating profit/(loss) manrl (BR) 8 16,358 (19,697)
Finance costs &R 9 (1,262) (1,675)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATEF], (E51E) 15,096 (21,372)
Income tax (expense)/credit s (X)) e 10(a) (1,407) 2,141
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to EN/NET 3
shareholders of the Company RNEZRF, (EE) 13,689 (19,231)
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per BREAREERT,
share (cents) (E18) (L) 1 6.9 (9.7)
The above consolidated income statement should be read in  _FilisrA B REERBEN M T —HRE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REERHEWE R

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

2021 2020
=F=—F —ToTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEEF, (E8) 13,689 (19,231)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hin2EME(BX) :
Item that will not be reclassified Hig B Tresimst
subsequently to profit or loss 2iEmMIER
Revaluation deficit on land and buildings, T RAEF 2 B EA
net of tax HIBRTHIE (5,891) (9,920)
Item that may be reclassified to HigrgegEmod
profit or loss ZE=MIAR
Exchange difference arising from B AR BHEK 2 iR
translation of financial statements of ZIEERER
subsidiaries 11,980 15,907
Other comprehensive income for the year AFEHMzEKE 0 608 5987
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the RNATRREERFE
year attributable to shareholders wmemiias, (18K)
of the Company 19,778 (13,244)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income — _Eilitsrd & EUWES R FEE RIBEM M 5T — HHRIE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B B ISR R &

As at 31st December 2021
RZFZ—F+=ZH=+—H

2021 2020
=F=—F —ToTF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
MI5E FET FET
ASSETS EBE
Non-current assets EmBNEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B KA 15 406,112 419,948
Investment properties wEME 16 43,100 42,980
Non-current deposits IEmENETE 234 652
Deferred tax assets FRETIBE 10(b) 7,443 9,726
456,889 473,306
Current assets MEVEE
Inventories "E 17 161,542 117,352
Trade and bill receivables B SR IE R
FEW =15 18 78,010 58,642
Derivative financial instruments PTEemITA 19 28 2,592
Other receivables, deposits and Hib WA - 5]
prepayments EENE e 11,551 10,939
Taxation recoverable AT BRI 405 777
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 20 19,308 22,370
270,844 212,672

Total assets BEE 727,733 685,978
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
REMBMRRRE(E)

As at 31st December 2021
RZFE-Z—FF+-_H=+—H

2021 2020
—EC-—F e S SaS
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
MI5E FiEx FET
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to shareholders of /NG i Y Y g v
the Company
Share capital &N 21 19,896 19,896
Reserves et 549,162 529,384
Total equity g 569,058 549,280
LIABILITIES 8fE&
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 77 -
Deferred tax liabilities FRERIBEE 10(b) 37,650 40,289
37,727 40,289
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade payables =) ANEeE 22 22,714 23,737
Other payables, accruals and HAbFERFRIA - FERT
contract liabilities A hEaHaE 22 19,337 22,630
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 454 77
Taxation payable FERBIE 4,071 4,238
Bank loans BITEN 23 60,000 37,200
Trust receipt loans SRR E K 23 14,372 8,527
_________ 120,948 96,409
Total liabilities e 158,675 136,698
Total equity and liabilities i MR aE 727,733 685,978

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 127 were %433‘312752%?%?1?%%%%:?::¢Eﬂ
approved by the Board of Directors on 22nd March 2022 and were =T+ RA&EEFSHEWRERESE o
signed on its behalf.

MON Chung Hung SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
=R FIEM
Director Director

EF EF

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be — _EiltAR& BAFEAR L 3R FEZE (R BE P BT 55 — HFRIFE -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

Reserves
e
Land and
Exchange building Capital
Share Share  fluctuation  revaluation  redemption Retained Total Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings reserves equity
1#E
E2  BTEf EX
h&  ROEE  23RG e EERE  REEA B fEs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tén Tén TEn Tén TEn Tén Thn

As at 1st January 2021 RZE--F-F-H 19,896 15,885 15,122 234,494 104 263,779 529,384 549,280

Comprehensive incore 2ENE

Profitfor the year KEEE - - - - - 13,689 13,689 13,689
Other comprehensive HrEie /(8%

income/(loss)
Revaluation deficitonland ~ THRET 7 ERF#

and building - - - (6.978) - - (6,978) (6978)
Deferred tax creditedto  FfAZREAZETHE

revaluation reserve - - - 1,087 - - 1,087 1,087
Exchange difference arising ~ FATESMEEEMEEZ

from translation of EXZE

foreign operations - - 11,980 - - - 11,980 11,980

Total comprehensive income/  AEEB2EUE /(%)
(loss) for the year - - 11,980 (5,891)

13,689 19,778 19,778

Asat 31st December 2021 MZE-—F+-A=1+-H 19,896 15,885 27,102 228,603 104 277,468 549,162 569,058
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
meEREER(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021

HE-F-_—F+-A=1+—HUFE

Reserves
i
Land and
Exchange building Capital
Share Share  fluctuation  revaluation  redemption Retained Total Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings reserves equity
TR
EX  BFE[ BA
BE BOEE  EBERE BE  EORE  RERM i s
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000
Thn TEL TERL T TEL TER T T
As at Tst January 2020 RZF-TE-F-H 19,89 15,885 (785) 2444 104 283,010 542,628 562,524
Comprehensive loss REEX
Loss for the year RERER - - - - - (19231 (19231 (19.231)
Other comprehensive A2 ERE/(BX)
income/floss)
Revaluation deficitonland T RET 2 BEEY
and building - - - (11,934) - - (11,934) (11,934}
Deferred tax credited to ~ AAEREEZEEHA
revaluation reserve - - - 2,014 - - 2014 2014
Exchange difference arising ~ RITESMEEEMESZ
from translation of EiEE
foreign operations - - 15,907 - - - 15,907 15,907
Total comprehensive income/  AEEB2EUE /(%)
(loss) for the year - - 15,907 (9,920) - (19,231) (13,244) (13,244)
Asat31st December 2020 AZFFET-A=1-A 19,89 15,885 15,122 234,494 104 263,779 529,384 549,280

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bliAR S R B YK R R BE BT B S — GBI AE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BEZF-—F1THA=F—HIFE

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2021 2020
—E—F —ETF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FfaE FET FAET
Cash flows from operating activities EEITHNRERE
Net cash (used in)/generated from EiE(FA)/EEm
operations FEE 25(a) (21,044) 28,460
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid), net & (Bf) &S
FASHFEE 327 (127)
Overseas income tax paid, net SADBINTIS R R (1,118) (1,738)
Interest paid ZAFLE (1,262) (1,675)
Net cash (used in)/generated from EEEE (TR EE
operating activities HFIRE (23,097) 24,920
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNEERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BBEWE - BE M&E (9,190) (16,416)
Deposits paid for additions of property, SREME - BEK
plant and equipment B (20) (452)
Interest received IR B R 2 13 27
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - BENEE
plant and equipment TIECEN 25(b) 801 43
Net cash used in investing activities WEREFTRAMFRE (8,396) (16,798)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETBNRERE
Additions of bank loans FTIRITER 25(d 35,000 10,000
Repayments of bank loans BERIRITEN 25(d) (12,200) (9,800)
Net addition/(repayment) of trust SFEIE (B )T
receipt loans WIEE R 25(d) 5,845 (22,908)
Payments for principal portion of TNHEaERESEHY
the lease liabilities 25(d) (445) (451)
Net cash generated from/(used in) mEEBESL(FTR)
financing activities mFRe 28200 (23,159)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReERASEENZ
equivalents R (3,293) (15,037)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—RZzR&xk
at 1st January REEEY 22,370 36,548
Exchange difference on cash and RekReEEYM
cash equivalents N ER 231 859
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—A=+—8B=2
at 31st December HERBLEEY 20 19,308 22,370
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  _FHll4R AR ERE R EBRBEMN I cE— 538 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

General Information

Perennial International Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing and trading of electric cable and wire
products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") unless otherwise stated.

Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of land and buildings and
investment properties and certain financial assets and
liabilities (including derivative instruments), which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

—RER
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7 o RAF R EHE A R (RTE A EE ) E
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ARARBREAMK LA —HBERAT °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BEZF-—F1THA=F—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FEEFHERME(E)
Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mEEE(E)
New and amended standards adopted by the Group AEBRMFTER R ERAEET A
The following new and amended standards have been AEEER_ZE_—F—H—Hzzi&
adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial FIAM B BFE & R A AT 2R
year beginning on or after 1st January 2021: RAEANEET AN -
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concession
BRI BHREERNFE 165 (BFTA) COVID-198FEMHE TR
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Interest rate benchmark reform phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
BB RMEERFE - HAEGFTERIZEI95E - IR E AR B E 1

FERVHREENET - BEFHREERIFEASE -
RERBM B REERIFE165E (BRI A)

The adoption of the new and amended standards listed BN _EBIRET RS ETHE RN 4 3R 11 HA
above did not have material impact on the amounts ERRZ BT EEATE - WHHDT
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to AR R R ERTE -

significantly affect the current or future period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEWEMT(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

2. TESTHBERBEGE)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31st December
2021 reporting period and have not been early adopted
by the group.

fm BLELYE (1])

e R ERAR A0 HT RT 22 B B2 2 08
ETERMELFN_—"T_—F+_A
=+— B3REHE A A IET L&
BRI TR Ml REREEER
R -

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

BT BHR &R
HEEMBEXR

HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1st January 2023
(deferred from

1st January 2021)

BB REERFE175 REBAELD —E-=#F—A—H
(R=ZT=—%F
—fF—B#E)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment:

proceeds before intended use
W - WENEE - BERSRIFTE

IR

1st January 2022

R EAFE 165 (EFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the conceptual

framework
BRI wEEREIFRUERTAR) BRER Z 22t —ZET-—F—Hf—A
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling 1st January 2022

a contract
BB G ERIEI7R(EFIA) EIEH - BITARZEAR T _%—H—H
Amendments to Annual Improvements Annual improvements of HKFRSs 1st January 2022

Project 2018-2020

FRBCEFTEI(BRTA) B )\FE_Z_TFEBNK —E-__§—H—H

Accounting Guideline 5 (Amendments)

BETHESIFESHE (BRI A)

Amendments to HKAS 1

BAAGRTERIE G (ERTA)

ERRZ FEE

Revised accounting guideline 5
merger accounting for common
control combinations (AG 5)

KEET 2785 o5 L RIEHIE 8
aftghA(GEHESI%E55%)

Classification of liabilities as current
or non-current

HRESERRBHIERD

1st January 2022

- —F—H—H

1st January 2023

—E-_=9%—HF—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BEZF-—F1THA=F—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FESHEME(E)

Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

2.1 RAEEE(E)
[ AR ERAR A9 RT 22 R R w2 18 ()

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
RT3 BESR &%
NWFEEHEER
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Disclosure of accounting policies 1st January 2023
Practice Statement 2
ERGH LB VR REBMBHRELD FEIHEIHE —T=%—H—H
BEFEAE2RE(BRIA)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of accounting estimates 1st January 2023
HAGFTERIESH (IBETAR) BRI ET 2 ER —E-=F—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 12

BB e ERIFE125E (BRI A)

Amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5

BEREESR(BRIA)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

FREMBHREERIE105 L EL SR

2857 (ER]A)

Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single
transaction

HE-RSEENEENBERBN
RIETIE

Classification by the borrower
of a term loan that contains a
repayment on demand clause

fE R A S B 75 SRR BIHER SR O TE B3
B0

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

HEEHEBMENRRAEEDE M
MEENESTE

1st January 2023

—E-=F—H—H

Applied when an
entity applies
"Classification of
liabilities as current
or non-current” —
amendments to
HKAS 1

RERERAEESH
AR5 (IBRTAN)
[KEESERRE
IEM B 5 FE M

To be confirmed by the
HKICPA

BESRHM AR

The Group will adopt the new standards, amendments

REREAFTR] REER R B e

or interpretations when they become effective.
The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the related impact of adopting the above new
standards, amendments or interpretations, none of
which is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

PR B IR - AR EE FIaRHE
BRANLA 3R] M AE AT R K e r0 4R
T E  BRTSEARRENGRE NS
WREXEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEWEMT(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated, unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred assets. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

2.3 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’'s net assets
including goodwill.

2. TESTHBERBEGE)

2.2

2.3

e RA

B A RIE AR E Y HE ARSI
FER(BEABLER)  -EXAEER
AAS AL B RE T AR F] & [ FR 0 LB 3
FHAEEmNELD - WHEEBE
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MBRER 2

B R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BEZF-—F1THA=F—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FESHEME(E)
Policies (Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting 24 HHFHRE
Operating segments are reported in a manner KRN IPIERATFEEERRERMH
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the NERE B HTARE -
chief operating decision-maker.
2.5 Foreign currency translation 25 SHEB@E
(i)  Functional and presentation currency (i) eERZHEM
ltems included in the financial statements of each FIEARSEERE BV BHRET
of the Group's entities are measured using the MIERMZEHEREEMT
currency of the primary economic environment E’\JI%%%@LR%E’JL%U%@E%T
in which the entity operates (the “functional W ETE - SRAMIEIRER S
currency”). The consolidated financial statements TIEZRY - HAKRARININEER
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which AEENZMEHE o

is the Company’s functional and the Group's
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances (i) XIREE
Foreign currency transactions are translated into INEZSIRZT S BRERRE R
the functional currency using the exchange rates e B - At EXZ0EE N
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange FMEUINE AR EREEE R
gains and losses resulting from the settlement BERFRERETREMES
of such transactions and from the translation of RISNE R B — R IBm P RER o

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are FrEEMINEREBENGEEEREK
presented in the consolidated income statement FE M ERTFREARFREE
on a net basis within other operating expenses, HEZT o

net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair BAREEL AINEHERNIE
value in a foreign currency are translated using Bk |EIEE KAARERTE BN
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value ERIE - N RENRNEE
was determined. Translation differences on assets RaEmEY =@ ERANE
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as AEH—E DR o

part of the fair value gain or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at an average
exchange rate (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effects of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses and translated of the date of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.6 Investment properties
Investment properties are land and/or buildings that are
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation
which include property interest held under operating
lease carried at fair value. Land held under operating
lease is accounted for as investment property when the
rest of the definition of an investment property is met.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value representing open market value determined
at each reporting date by external independent valuers.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as depreciated replacement cost approach or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of a valuation gain or loss in ‘other operating
expenses, net'.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

(i) Right-of-used assets
Right-of-used assets consist of leasehold land in
Hong Kong measured at fair value, land use rights
in Mainland China and Vietnam stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses and leased property in Hong
Kong measured in accordance with accounting
policy as disclosed in note 2.8. The above right-
of-use assets are presented as the corresponding
underlying assets of the property, plant and
equipment.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of leasehold land in Hong Kong are
recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in land and building
revaluation reserve. To the extent that the
increase reverses a decrease previously
recognised in consolidated income statement, the
increase is first recognised in consolidated income
statement. Decreases that reverse previous
increases of the same asset are first recognised
in other comprehensive income to the extent of
the remaining surplus attributable to the asset,
all other decreases are charged to consolidated
income statement.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021

BE—F-—F+-H=1—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Buildings

Buildings comprise of office in Hong Kong
and factories in Mainland China and Vietnam
which are shown at fair value, based on annual
valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation and impairment. Any
accumulated depreciation and impairment at the
date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is
restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of buildings are recognised, net of tax,
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in land and building revaluation reserve. To the
extent that the increase reverses a decrease
previously recognised in consolidated income
statement, the increase is first recognised in
consolidated income statement. Decreases that
reverse previous increases of the same asset are
first recognised in other comprehensive income
to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable
to the asset; all other decreases are charged to
consolidated income statement.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, comprising
leasehold improvements, plant and machinery,
furniture and fixtures, office equipment, motor
vehicles and pleasure boats are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost which
comprises construction costs, purchase costs and
other related expenses incurred in connection
with the construction of buildings, leasehold
improvements, plant and machinery for own use,
less provision for impairment losses, if any. On
completion, construction in progress is transferred
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BEZF-—F1THA=F—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FEEFHERME(E)
Policies (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.7 W% -  BERSREE)

(iv) Depreciation (iv) &
Depreciation on leasehold land in Hong Kong and ERHEL W REF T UFER
buildings is calculated to write off their valuation B URREREEE G
less accumulated impairment losses on a straight- FRAFHARESE BE)LER
line basis over the unexpired period of the leases ESHR 2EUREBEmMEEE
or their estimated useful lives, whichever is HE - FTRATEFENTI15%E
shorter. The principal annual rates used range 4% °

from 1.5% to 4%.

Land use rights in Mainland China and Vietnam 7 A R K e e it g Y - b {5 AR
are depreciated over the lease term on a straight- BERERNIEESENE -
line basis.

Other property, plant and equipment except Ht  BERZEB(TEE
construction in progress are depreciated at rates FEREIR) ZIWETUSRERR
sufficient to write off their costs less accumulated SEIRE G ET AT A A B LA
impairment losses over their estimated useful NMERFBZEREEE - HBlEME
lives on a reducing balance basis. The principal RAzEEFEMT -

annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 15%-20% HEWHERE 15%—-20%
Plant and machinery 15%-20% G 15%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 15%-20% ERREE 15%-20%
Office equipment 15%-20% FEYNE I 15%-20%
Motor vehicles 15%-20% TE 15%-20%
Pleasure boats 10% HEME 10%

No depreciation is provided for construction-in- TREIETHENE  BEZED
progress until they are completed and put into ST TP AT B 4% A AR E VR E R
production ready for their intended use, upon ®oJER - ERWEREDE -
which they will be transferred to property, plant BB M o

and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEWEMT(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Others

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount. These are included in the consolidated
income statement and are recognised within ‘other
operating expenses, net’. Where revalued assets
are sold, the amounts included in land and building
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained
earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.8 Leases

(i)

The Group as a Lessee

The Group as a lessee recognizes a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability when a lease is
capitalized at the commencement date, except
for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
("short-term leases”) and leases of low-value
assets. Payments in relation to short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognized as
an expense in profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of lease payments payable with
reference to an expected lease term, which
includes optional lease periods when the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option to
extend or not to terminate the lease. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. Lease
payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable payments that
depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected
to be payable under residual value guarantees and
payments arising from options reasonably certain
to be exercised. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and are
expensed in the period to which they relate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing its carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability (using the effective interest
rate method) and by reducing its carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made. The lease
liability is remeasured (with a corresponding
adjustment made to the related right-of-use asset)
when there is a change in future lease payments
in case of renegotiation, changes of an index or
rate or in case of reassessment of options.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.8 Leases (Continued)
(i) The Group as a Lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability, any initial direct costs
incurred, the obligation to restore the asset,
and any lease payments made in advance of
the commencement date less any incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation,
applying the depreciation requirements in HKAS
16 Property, Plant and Equipment and is subject to
impairment review whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

(ii) The Group as a Lessor
Lease payments from properties letting under
operating leases are recognized as rental income
over the lease term on a straight line basis.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Such impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BEZF-—F1THA=F—HIFE

2. TESTHBERBEGE)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss);
and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVPL are expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories in which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in consolidated income
statement and presented in other operating
expenses, net together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated income statement.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.1

2.12

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in

credit risk.

Impairment on these financial assets are
measured as either 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of
a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables. See
note 3.1(iv) for further details.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
Group has also entered into arrangements that do not
meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the
related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,
such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Assets and liabilities are
classified as current if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the derivatives are presented in the profit or loss within
‘other operating expenses, net’ in the period in which
they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.13 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items
on the first-in, first-out basis and are arrived at as
follows:

(i) Raw materials purchased for use in the
manufacturing process — invoiced price and
shipping cost.

(i)~ Work in progress and finished manufactured
goods — costs of direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads.

(i) Finished goods purchased for resale — invoiced
price and shipping cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measure them
subsequently at amortised cost using effective interest
method. See note 18 for further information about
the Group's accounting for trade receivables and note
2.10(iv) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits
held at call with financial institutions that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts with original maturities of three months
or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. The fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.18 Borrowings (Continued)
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the financial
period in which they are incurred.

2.19 Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payment is
recognised as a liability and an expense when
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plan
are expected to be settled within twelve months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BEZF-—F1THA=F—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FEEFHERME(E)
Policies (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued) 219 EERTR (&)
(iii) Retirement benefit costs (iii) BRESRAE

The Group operates several defined contribution
schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

For Hong Kong employees, the Group contributes
to Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") scheme in
accordance with Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions to
the MPF scheme by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’
remuneration received. The Group's contributions
to MPF scheme are expensed as incurred. The
assets of the MPF scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

For employees in Mainland China and Vietnam,
the Group contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme managed by the local
municipal government in Mainland China and
Vietnam. The Group's contributions to the
retirement scheme are expensed as incurred
while the local municipal government in Mainland
China and Vietnam undertakes to assume that
the retirement benefit obligations of the qualified
employees in Mainland China and Vietnam.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31st December 2021
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2. TESTHBERBEGE)

220 EHRIELERE (&)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

220 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intend either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
consolidated income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the obligation present at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31st December 2021
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.22 Revenue recognition
(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when control of the
products has transferred to the customers at
a point in time, being when the products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products have
been shipped to the specified location, the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has
accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
As receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(iii) Operating lease rental income
Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.23 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Financial Risk Management
3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group.

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign currency risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB"), Vietnamese Dong (“VND")
and United States Dollar (“"US$"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations. In addition,
the conversion of RMB and VND are subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by Mainland China monetary
authority and Vietnam government respectively.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities, the Group enters into foreign
exchange forward contracts with external financial
institutions to partially hedge against such foreign
exchange risk.

Should RMB strengthened/weakened by 5%
(2020: 5%) during the year ended 31st December
2021 against the HK$, with all other variables held
constant, the impact of the profit after taxation
for the year would have been approximately
HK$629,000 higher/lower (2020: loss
approximately HK$993,000 higher/lower), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of RMB denominated receivables and
payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Should VND strengthened/weakened by
5% (2020: 5%) during the year ended 31st
December 2021 against the HK$/US$, with all
other variables held constant, the impact of
the profit after taxation for the year would have
been approximately HK$1,171,000 lower/higher
(2020: loss approximately HK$454,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of VND denominated
receivables and payables.

Certain of the assets of the Group are
denominated in US$ but the foreign exchange risk
is considered not significant as HK$ exchange rate
is pegged to USS$.

The foreign exchange risk on financial assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
RMB, VND and US$ are insignificant to the Group.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the market
price of major raw materials such as copper rods
and chemicals to make plastic resins.

The Group is able to pass certain realised price
gains and losses on raw materials to certain
customers through price adjustments, which
can mitigate the price risk. The Group has not
used any derivative instruments to hedge such
economic exposures.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash held at variable
rates. Details of the Group's borrowings have
been disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not used any hedging arrangement
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis presents the effects on
the Group’s loss after taxation for the year as a
result of changes in interest expense on floating
rate borrowings. The sensitivity to interest rate
used is based on market forecasts available
at the reporting date and under the economic
environments in which the Group operates, with
other variables held constant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Based on the analysis performed, the impact on
the profit (2020: loss) after taxation of a 100 basis-
point increase/decrease in interest rate would be
a decrease/increase (2020: increase/decrease) of
HK$659,000 and HK$495,000 for the years ended
31st December 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables,
other receivables, and favourable derivative
financial instrument and deposits placed with
banks.

Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.

For the favourable financial derivatives and
deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions, only independently rated parties with
acceptable rating quality is accepted.

Risk control assesses the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors. Individual risk
limits are set based on internal or external ratings
in accordance with limits set by the Group. The
compliance with credit limits by customers is
regularly monitored by the Group.

The Group has policies in place to ensure sales
are made to customers with appropriate credit
terms and the Group performs periodic credit
check with reference to credit rating performed by
external agents.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales made to the top 5 customers amounted
to approximately HK$259,352,000 (2020:
HK$188,365,000), representing 69% (2020: 67 %)
of total revenue for the year. The total accounts
receivable balance of these top 5 customers as at
31st December 2021 was HK$52,741,000 (2020:
HK$38,786,000).
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For the year ended 31st December 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has four types of financial assets that
are subject to the expected credit loss model:

. Bill receivables
° Cash at bank
° Trade receivables

o Other financial assets at amortised cost

Bill receivables and cash at bank

As at 31st December 2021, most of the bank
deposits are deposited with reputable banks in
Mainland China, Vietnam and Hong Kong. Most of
the bill receivables are issued from state-owned
banks in Mainland China. The credit quality of cash
at bank and bill receivables has been assessed by
reference to external credit ratings or to historical
information about the counterparty default rates.
The existing counterparties do not have default in
the past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of
cash at bank and bill receivables is assessed to
be close to zero and no provision was made as at
31st December 2021.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measures expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped by invoice date
and based on shared credit risk characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 12 months before
31st December 2021 and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
On that basis, the loss allowance of trade
receivables as at 31st December 2021 and 2020
was determined as follows:

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021

BE—F-—F+-H=1—HIFE

B EREE(F)

3.1

B EKEE(E)

(iv) FERRKGE)
EBESEWE(E)
REEE  WZE-—FEK-F
—EFE+_A=1+—HWNESE
WHBEEBEETNT

By invoice date

RBEZAMH
0-3 4-6 Over

months months 6 months Total

0-31@ A2 4-6R HEiB6MEA F
31st December 2021 —E-_—H+=A

=+—8H

Expected loss rate TEHIEEX 0.1% 0.4% 91.5%
Gross carrying amount IREBE-E5EK

— trade receivables FIE(FHIT)

(HK$'000) 66,953 7,662 11,238 85,853
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EE#E4E(THET) 45 32 10,281 10,358
31st December 2020 —E-ZEHF+—-A

=+—8
Expected loss rate TEHISEX 1.6% 1.3% 96.9%
Gross carrying amount BREEE-ESEK

— trade receivables RIE(FHIT)

(HK$'000) 54,502 2,957 16,395 73,854
Loss allowance (HK$'000) &5 (FET) 872 38 15,880 16,790

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at
31st December reconcile to the opening loss
allowances as follows:

Rt+ZA=+—HEZEKKIE
&S 18 78 15 B HR 1) S 1R B 1B T AR A
T

2021 2020
—E—F —ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Opening loss allowance at W—B— BEAEERE
1st January 16,790 754
(Decrease)/Increase in loss RERBREREERE
allowance recognised in profit — (&4>), /10
or loss during the year (727) 15,719
Provision written off as RRAVEASAT Uk (2] T il 5 10 7B 45
uncollectible (5,792) -
Exchange alignment PE H §EEE 87 317
Closing loss allowance at RT=ZA=+—B#X
31st December EERE 10,358 16,790
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+ - A=+—HIFZF

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost are
considered to be low credit risk primarily because
historically they had no history of default and
the debtors had a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.
Therefore, as at 31st December 2021 and 2020,
the directors of the Group were of the opinion that
no provision for loss allowance was necessary.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and making available
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
with staggered maturities to reduce refinancing
risk in any year and to fund working capital, debt
servicing, dividend payments, new investments
and close out market positions if required. The
Group maintains significant flexibility to respond
to opportunities and events by ensuring that
committed credit lines are available. As at 31st
December 2021, the Group had available trade
and loan finance facilities of HK$128,040,000 of
which HK$74,372,000 was utilised.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BEZF-—F1THA=F—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. B EBRERE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BKEKREE(E)
(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) RBESERKEGE)
The table below analyses the Group's financial TERAIMASEENSREE &
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on RAAEM AR - RIBEHWS
the remaining period at the end of the reporting HAREZEAHNFHAMFGHERE
period to the contractual maturity date. The TR - ERABENESERE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual WMERMIRBESRE - ARAIR
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within FFZETK L E12E A RE)
12 months equal their carrying balances as the R AR ES R ERREE -
impact of discounting is not significant.
On demand or Between
within 1 year 1to 2 years
RERS—FR —ZEME
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 31st December 2021 R-EB-_—%+=-H=+—H
Trust receipt loans EEBIEER 14,372 -
Bank loans BITEN 60,000 -
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAERFIE 29,103 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 454 77
At 31st December 2020 R-E-EF+-H=+—H
Trust receipt loans ErBIEER 8,627 -
Bank loans WITEN 37,200 -
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAER IR 32,431 -

Lease liabilities HEAE 77 _
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAaBRERMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+ - A=+—HIFZF

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management
The primary objective of the Group's capital
management is to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, maintain a strong credit
rating and a healthy capital ratio to support the business
and to enhance shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and business strategies. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts. The Group's capital management objectives,
policies or processes were unchanged during the years
ended 31st December 2021 and 2020.

Except for the compliance of certain financial covenants
for maintaining the Group’s banking facilities and
borrowings and loans, the Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. The Group
complied with the financial covenants attached to
borrowings and loans as at 31st December 2021 and
2020.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings
to total equity.

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2021 and 2020
were as follows:

3.

B EREE(EF)

32 EERKRER
AEFESEEMNETEHIZ  2ERAN
SEFELE  #IERONEEFTLM
BEMESLER U EEBEERER
IR IER(EE -

7R 5= B [ P A A AL O B D P SR R S
REBMABRESRE  AKE A HE
MR TRCREVE - BITHIAR - BESUE
BER AKENESEERT - BXR
FEFREBE T _—FR_T_TF
T-A=+—BLFEGENE -

B%L***?HM%Q B A MERS N EE /IR

ITRIE RAERFERIN - REBW HT
Eﬂ&l\*ﬁﬁmﬁua’]éiﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ%u o NEE
BR-_ZE-_—Fk_F-_FF+_A
=+ — BESFERE KT A8 7522
g‘;g °

AEBABERSRRILS - st
R EREE 1S 20 L
HE_E-—FERp_FE_FTF+_A4

=t+—BLEFEERLEMT

2021 2020

—E—fF e S S

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Total borrowings AR 74,372 45,727
Total equity ErES 569,058 549,280
Gearing ratio R R 13.1% 8.3%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, trade
and bill receivables, other receivables and deposits,
derivative financial instruments, trade payables, other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities and short-term
borrowings approximate to their fair values due to their
short-term maturities. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments, unless the discounting effect is
insignificant.

See notes 15 and 16 for disclosures of the property,
plant and equipment and investment properties and note
19 for disclosure of the derivative financial instruments
that are measured at fair value and classified by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy at 31st
December 2021 and 2020:

1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

3. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (Level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end
of reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets and liabilities is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEWEMT(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. B EBREE (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1 Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated taxes based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

4,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

4.2

4.3

44

Estimated fair value of investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings
The fair value of investment properties, buildings
and leasehold land and building in Hong Kong are
determined at the end of each reporting period by
independent professional valuers. The fair value of
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings
in Hong Kong are determined on an open market value
basis by reference to comparable market transactions.
The fair value of buildings in Vietnam and Mainland
China are determined on depreciated replacement cost
basis. The market approach of valuation is subject to
comparable market transactions while the depreciated
replacement cost approach is based on estimation of
current construction cost by the surveyors.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade
receivables based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rate. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Provision for inventories

Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment
of the net realisable value of its inventory, which is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. In making its judgement, management
considers a wide range of factors such as the age of
the inventory items and the assessment of the results
of the subsequent sales performance of the items.
Management reassess the provision at the end of the
reporting period.

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
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4. BBESTHEE R HE (&)

4.2

4.3

44
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEWEMT(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE—F-——F+-H=14—HIFEF

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and 4. B hstRHE (&)

Judgements (Continued)

4.5 Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment
The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of the property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Revenue and Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of electric cable and wire products. Revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

45 Y% MERKRE 2T AL
REH
AEBEEEETNE  BERREZ
At AR F AR ERX - itk
AERSARRUEE REZY
ESS V%& S BFR —HEFHEH;@ZJ_
SLAESe - RIREREB R M B LB RE
Ebo%ﬁl‘ﬂﬂ‘bﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁi e AT {55 P
FHER 2 AIEE 2 FH - S
gﬁa?&%iﬂj%Z%ﬁﬁ%i#%%ﬁ

Wz 2 2 BB E Y
AEEEBEENERERBRRGRESR
£ - FRRR KT ¢

2021 2020
:g:—qﬁ — 7 — E'E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Sale of goods — at a point in time THE — £ (A5 2 373,472 282,342

The Chief Executive Officer (the chief operation decision
maker (“CODM")) has reviewed the Group's internal reporting
and determines that there are five reportable segments,
based on location of customers under the electric cable and
wire products business, including Hong Kong, Mainland
China, America, Japan and Other countries (2020: Hong
Kong, Mainland China, America, Europe and Other countries).
CODM considered from both quantitative and qualitative
perspectives and disclosed Japan separately and grouped
Europe into Other countries for 2021. These segments are
managed separately as each segment is subject to risks and
returns that are different from others.

THER(EELERRE ) CHEAEER
MRERETESHERERERER TRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
HE—F-——F+_A=1—HIFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. W&EROIHER (&)

(Continued)
The segment information for the reportable segments for TR FRIT_EFRESHNHEE
2021 and 2020 is as follows: BT
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets expenditure Depreciation
N6
(IMERSHE) DIEE BOWEE BER% wE
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
—E-—F —E-—F —E-—F —E-—fF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THERT FHET FHET FTHET
Hong Kong BB 48,915 2,886 127,577 3 5,208
Mainland China H B KR 78,295 7,111 317,828 387 12,440
America M 210,351 6,021 113,841 9 1
Japan EW:N 32,755 2,029 1,104 - -
Other countries HABIxR 3,156 225 116,840 8,811 3,267
Reportable segment ~ #{ &5 73 & 373,472 18,272 677,190 9,210 20,916
Unallocated costs AOEER (1,914)
Operating profit B 16,358
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets  expenditure  Depreciation
Yzs
(HMEBEHE) DEEE HBOBEE EARY nE
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
HK$ 000 HK$ OOO HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FHAT FHT FAT FAT FHAT
Hong Kong &5 80,101 (17,707) 135,755 735 5,809
Mainland China SalEip N 39,794 (1,042) 302,067 690 11,163
America FEM 159,168 1,677 94,300 - -
Europe BUM 530 16 172 - -
Other countries HiBIxR 2,749 99 100,978 15,443 3,033
Reportable segment 55 2 &P 282,342 (17,057) 633,272 16,868 20,005
Unallocated costs AOERER (2,640)

Operating loss REEE (19,697)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAaBRERMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5.

a2 ERE R ()

(Continued)
A reconciliation of total segment assets to the Group's total BoFEERAEEAEENYE
assets:
2021 2020
—B-—F —TEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Total segment assets By EE 677,190 633,272
Investment properties WEMZE 43,100 42,980
Deferred tax assets RIEFIREE 7,443 9,726
Total assets BEE 727,733 685,978

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.

Revenue of approximately HK$195,464,000 (2020:
HK$151,130,000) are derived from two (2020: two) major
customers contributing 10% or more of the total revenue.
These revenues are attributable to the America segment

(2020: America segment).

AOEEMEARZMH -

U 25 #9195,464,000 8 L ( —Z T T 4F
151,130,000 7)) e REMEZ(ZE=F
F:WMEB)ETEZPL (B K2E10% 3k
b)) - ZEREREEMDE(ZE_ZTF

FiMaER) -

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A EFEA 101,176 74,693
Customer B ZFB 94,288 76,437
195,464 151,130
a2z
6. Other Income 6. HftbWz=

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Scrap sales EERIHE 4,016 714
Interest income FEHA 13 27

Rental income from investment REREMEZHASKA
properties 1,524 1,106
Government subsidy AT # B 99 2,689
Other income from customers EfEEUIA 2,083 2,433
7,735 6,869




7. Other Operating Expenses, Net
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

H A A& 5 R

2021 2020
—E_—fF ZE-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revaluation deficit of buildings EFEEEA (3,424) (221)
Gain/(loss) on revaluation of BEYESHAE, (BX)
investment properties 120 (4,220)
Charitable donations ZE1BR (882) (905)
Net gain on derivatives financial PTHES R T BFURES
instruments 449 3,690
Net exchange losses HNETF B R (375) 614)
Net gain on disposal/write-off of HE MEDE - BE &
property, plant and equipment Byl e 282 3
Other expenses HAbk (1,076) (1,201)
(4,906) (3,468)
8. Operating Profit/(Loss) 8. KEHF(E5E)
Operating profit/(loss) is stated after charging the following: A (R BB T &E -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Depreciation wE 20,916 20,005
Auditor’s remuneration IZE A &
- Audit services — #:TIEE 1,483 1,436
- Non-audit services — FEEETIEE 728 1,121
Cost of inventories FERA 199,288 148,564
Net exchange losses HNE R IB IR 375 614
Lease payments for short-term EAREEEHENHENK
and low-value leases 37 29
Direct expenses for investment WEMEREG C EREEERY
properties 302 219
Provision for slow-moving BRTERETR
inventories, net 80 154
Staff costs (including directors’ BINA(BIEESHES)
emoluments) (note 13) (fF5E13) 89,997 77,935
9. Finance Costs 9. MIKEH
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
Finance expenses on HEBB VR
lease liabilities 17 11
Interest expenses on RITERZFERXY
bank borrowings 1,245 1,664
Finance cost 7% & R 1,262 1,675
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021

BEr—-F—

—F1+ A=+ —HIFE

10. Taxation

(a)

Hong Kong profits tax provided at the two-tiered rate
of 8.26% for the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits for one of the Group’'s Hong Kong
subsidiaries for the year and 16.5% on the remaining
estimated assessable profits for the year (2020: 8.25%
for the first HK$2 million and 16.5% for the remaining).

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profits for the year at the
applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

US corporation is subject to two level of taxes.
Corporation is taxed on its earnings, and when the
corporate earnings are distributed to the shareholders
as dividend, the shareholders need to pay tax on the
dividend received. Corporate income tax is imposed
at the federal and state level on all entities treated as
corporation. The federal corporate tax rate is 21% (2020:
21%) while the state corporate tax rate is varied by
states.

The corporate income tax of the People's Republic
of China ("PRC") is provided at 25% based on the
assessable profit for the year less allowable losses
brought forward, if applicable. Two of the Group's
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are recognised
as small and low profit enterprise which have been
granted tax concession by the local tax bureau and are
entitled to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at concessionary
rate of 2.5% (2020: 5%) for the first RMB1 million of
the estimated assessable profits for the year and 10%
(2020: 5%) for the remaining estimated assessable for
the year.

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietham
were subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20%
(2020: 20%). In accordance with the applicable tax
regulations, a subsidiary is subject to a lower tax rate
of 10% for fifteen consecutive years, commencing
from the first year of making revenue. In addition, the
subsidiary is entitled to full exemption from corporate
income tax for the first four years from the earlier of (i)
the year when profit is generated for the first time or (i)
the fourth year of making revenue; and a 50% reduction
in corporate income tax for the next nine years, which
is offered by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated
in the subsidiary’s investment license. Perennial Cable
(Vietnam) Co., Ltd. is entitled to the full exemption from
corporate income tax starting from the financial year
ended 31st December 2019.

10. I8

(a)

ANEE-BEBHBRARNERZ (Gt
FER B % FEY & 2,000,0008 T R FE
T ep B0 5T FE SR B K 99 51132 8.25%
}16.5% KM & B B KR BB FE
H(ZZF —FF : 52,000,000/ 7T A
8.25% N FI#rIA16.5%) ©

51 2 BB ERIE S R AR
S R B A BT )RR OB 1T
AARENE -

KB RRFHARM - RAIBLEEF
B BEXRBMNESKEDIK TR
R BORBACD BB B - HHARS
RAH TR B R IREE L S B R
SR BAEERERR/2N%(ZF
TTF 21%) 0 MNBEEHRERMG
m# -

REAREME(HEDDEAMER
E R B RR T 5 IRk 4 S 5 1B
(WA ) 1E25% 1R - AEBEE T
R R E A R ERE A M %
ME B BIRSER - TR
BI¥FEHR 2 AT RS F E A
RE1BBTZAEEBREBRR25% (=%
ZEF 1 5%) RERNGTERDEF
10%(ZBE-FTF :5%) °

AR AR S & BT B R BB E20%
(ZZ-TF 1 20% )R B ML %
RS - RIBEAMEER - WEBA
RIEEBEAREEFREBETAFIR
BIRFLER10%EF o o - B EEE
MEFR ) EEWSHENE(RRE
HEAEE)VEFENER - ZHBERARE
BEHARCHNDENMER  WHRE
BHLFERNZE0%DERESREE
TEBEBAST  WiRZHEB AR
R E TR B FTRIRA © Perennial Cable
(Vietnam) Co., Lid. B BEH - — N
F+_A=1+—HIMRFERBEH
NN FTIST ©



10. Taxation (Continued)

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

10. HIE (&)

(Continued) (@ (&)
The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the RiFAEEERNEGTA) ZFIEE
consolidated income statement represents:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FiBT
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH 309 77
Overseas taxation BN IR 1,507 2,446
(Over-provision)/under-provision FRIGERRERE) BETE
in prior years (1,140) 298
Deferred tax relating to the TREEEAR
origination and reversal B 2 RERIE
of temporary differences (FF5E10(0))
(note 10(b)) 731 (4,962)
1,407 (2,1471)
The taxation on the Group's profit/(loss) before taxation REBF@RBIADER,(E18) 2 HE
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise B AEBNEREMTE 21ER
using the profits tax rate of Hong Kong as follows: Mg ZEMT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREL AR T, (E51E) 15,096 (21,372)
Calculated at a taxation rate of BHIE16.5%
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) (ZZZZTF :16.5%)
HE 7 BIE 2,490 (3,526)
Effect of different taxation rates TRME 2 2 (535) (33)
Income not subject to taxation HERTL WA (663) (985)
Expenses not deductible for A 2
taxation purposes 1,275 2,022
(Over-provision)/under-provision FRIGERERE) BETE
in prior years (1,140) 298
Utilisation of previously ERERARERZ
unrecognised deferred tax assets BIETRIEEE (157) (18)
Tax losses for which no deferred REREETRIEE =
tax assets were recognised 2 BT 137 101
Taxation charge/(credit) Rk, (GTA) 1,407 (2,141)




Perennial International Limited E#B % B B R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

10. Taxation (Continued) 10. Hi1E (48)
(b) The movements of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities b) AFERBEFEELHE(EE) 8
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BIRBFENESHNT -

position are as follows:

Revaluation Tax Provisions
surplus  depreciation and others Tax losses Total
EffR& BERE BEREf BEER pak]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEn T T T
At 1st January 2021 RZZ=—-4%-HA—H 46,764 (5,734) (4,533) (5,934) 30,563
Credited to the consolidated SIARABER
income statement (874) (741) 57 2,289 731
Credited to revaluation reserve T AB kS (1,087) - - - (1,087)
At 31st December 2021 WoB--%
+-A=1+-H 44,803 (6,475) (4,476) (3,645) 30,207
At 1st January 2020 WZEZTF-F—H 48817 (4,740 (3,470) (3,068) 37,539
Credited to the consolidated FAGRBER
income statement (39) (994) (1,083) (2,866) (4,962)
Credited to revaluation reserve (P AE (G & (2,014) - - - (2,014)
At 31st December 2020 i
+-A=t-H 46,764 (5,734) (4,533) (5,934) 30,563
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial AT BB i R sRm iR 2 2 B R I8 45
position is as follows: BRI
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets BT IBE 7,443 9,726
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBEE (37,650) (40,289)

(30,207) (30,563)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Taxation (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of
HK$701,000 (2020: HK$720,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$4,048,000 (2020: HK$4,314,000) that
can be carried forward against future taxable income.
As at 31st December 2021, tax losses for which no
deferred tax assets were recognised amounting to
HK$937,000 (2020: HK$252,000) will expire in 5 years,
and the remaining tax losses of HK$3,111,000 (2020:
HK$4,062,000) has no expiry date.

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$7,321,000 (2020:
HK$6,857,000) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
Such amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted
earnings totalled HK$73,212,000 at 31st December
2021 (2020: HK$68,573,000).

(b)

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021

BE—F-—F+-H=1—HIFE

10. BIE (&)

(&)

U EEERAELERBEERN
HEE - RRBEBRAUKELERNKREKE
R T v ) T B IR A9 A8 B R S 2
oo NEEWEF ] A E KRR
JE BR B Uk 25 A 5 184,048,000 7T (=
T T F ¢ 4,314,000 0 ) HERIE L
FRIBEET701,0008 T (T T F :
720,00087C) c R=ZE=_—F+=A1
—t+—H KERELEHBEEE RS
F51E R 937,000/ T ( — T - T4 ¢
252,0008 7T) R AFEREBIE - T
2B EE3111,0008 T (2
F 1 4,062,000/ 70) WAERIEFA

ANEBIARE THE QRO KER
B AT A B FEE A H A B I8 R
IR EE 57,321,000 ( —F
Z T4 6,857,000 7T ) o HEKE
BBEFNEHERBHKRE - A ZZF
T—F+ - A=t+—HHKREREF
& #£732120008 T (T F :
68,573,000 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEWEMT(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

11.

12.

13.

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share 1. 8REF(EE)
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on BREARR(BE) DREAEER
the Group's profit for the year of HK$13,689,000 (2020: loss FEHF13,689,000 L (T F :
of HK$19,231,000) divided by the weighted average number 19,231,000 8 7T ) BR L A B 1T B
of 198,958,000 (2020: 198,958,000) ordinary shares in issue 2 IN#EF¥80198,958,0000 (=T =T F :
during the year. 198,958,000/% )51 & -
In both 2021 and 2020, diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the RZZBZ—FRZZFF - BARREHH
same as basic earnings/(loss) per share due to the absence of REEABEHELRR  MEREERF,
dilutive potential ordinary shares during the reporting period. (BB BESREARRF /(BB HER -
Dividends 12. K2
The Group did not pay any dividend for the year ended REE-Z-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE
31st December 2020. A final dividend in respect of the AEBWEREEIERKRE -R_T__FH
year ended 31st December 2021 of HK$0.02 per ordinary AZ+HB#TFRITZ S _FRRAF
share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$3,979,160, is to AL HBE@RRkEEE—_T-_—F+=-A
be proposed at the 2022 AGM on 24th May 2022. These =T —HIEFEZ REPREERE#AX0.02
consolidated financial statements do not reflect this dividend BT BN4AR% 83,979,160/ 7T » ANirA B 7
payable. WERIUERMZEEMRE -
Staff Costs (Including Directors’ 13. EIREL(BIEESHE)
Emoluments)
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FABT
Wages, salaries and fringe benefits L& - HiEi M z85MNE28E 83,123 73,883
Social security costs HERERA 5,400 3,068
Pension costs — contribution to RIRPE AR — @B FTEIVEH 2 5Kk
MPF scheme 436 428
Others EAh, 1,038 556
89,997 77,935
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

14. Benefits and Interests of Directors and 14. EENFTEEEAE 2@ K

Key Management m
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEHEA
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person’s B HERARKENB AR ESRIR
services as a director or other services in connection HEMEERERBEENRE ZALZ
with the management of the affairs, whether of the e sk KW E &SI T -
Company or its subsidiary undertaking are set out
below:
Contributions Other
Discretionary to MPF benefits
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses scheme (iii) Total
BEe Hit %R
=g He e MiFRs HE S (iii) @am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT TET TET TET TET
For the year ended
31st December 2021
HE-B--F
TZA=+-HLEE
MON Chung Hung (i) - 4,560 375 - 260 5,195
AIRIE()
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 110 - 234 1,664
BET
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 672 56 18 - 746
EEt
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 355 30 18 - 403
REH
MON Tiffany - 1,080 90 18 428 1,616
Ee
MON Derek - 40 40 2 - 82
RER
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - - 180
ZIHREH (i)
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) 84 - - - - 84
ZRE()
CHUNG Kit Ying (i) 120 - - - - 120
B (i)

384 8,027 701 56 922 10,090
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEWEMT(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

14. Benefits and Interests of Directors and 14. EERFTEEBAEZEIE

Key Management (Continued) R (E)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEEHM(E)
Contributions Other
Discretionary to MPF benefits
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses scheme (iii) Total
BiES HinEs
ERMA ik e Higte BEIESA (iii) k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET TET TET FTET TET
For the year ended
31st December 2020
BE-Z-%F
TZA=t-ALEE
MON Chung Hung (i) - 3,660 380 - 236 4,276
HIRIE()
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 110 - 211 1,641
ety
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 672 - 18 - 690
B89
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 355 30 18 - 403
hER
MON Tiffany - 1,080 90 18 364 1,552
RER
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - - 180
S4B (i)
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) 84 - - - - 84
FRE()
CHUNG Kit Ying (i) 120 - - - - 120
B2 (i)
384 7,087 610 54 811 8,946
(i) Chief Executive Officer (i) TEARE
(il Independent non-executive directors (i)  BUIEMITES
(i)  Other benefits include commission and insurance (i) HaEMNeEEESEe MR -
premium.
During the year, no emolument paid or receivable in TN E B (TR0 U 3k e U
respect of a person accepting office as a director (2020: Me(ZZE-ZTF M) UAREEESK
nil) and no director waived any emoluments (2020: nil) Bile (T _ZF : |8 BRSO

or compensation for loss of office (2020: nil). B(ZE-ZF &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

14. Benefits and Interests of Directors and
Key Management (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2020: nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2020: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Group
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2020: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31st December 2021, there is
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates
and connected entities of such directors (2020: nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2020: nil).

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021

BE—F-—F+ - H=F—HIFE

14. EERTEEBEABZEIR
= (E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EERRNER
FA - BEERD WRBUCRIKET
(ZF=_FF : |)-

EEMNKLEER
FA - BEEFCWSRER LEERR
BRr(—2_FF : §) -

MRHEEEREMRAE=ZF1
HEVEE

HE-_T-_—F+_-_A=+—HI#F
& AREEW T IERE SRS ST

F-FNEHE(ZZZTF - |E) o
MEE  ZTZSEEEHNE
ABBRZEENBEESHEIR
HHER EEFNHEMRS
HER
@E:E:—¢+:HE+ E¢¢

EﬁLﬁﬁﬂ%H/\/\Zfﬁﬂ'ﬁ\
MRXF(ZE_ZTF : &) o

ESEXRS  RHFIEAHNNE
KRR

W EmEBADTEBHARBERLS
—FEARRBEEFERER(TmEEH

Ef’?mi@ﬁ

B A EARD (RAFFRINF
REARENEARS - RHREH
(ZZ=FF &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

14. Benefits and Interests of Directors and 14. EENFTEEEAE 2@ R

Key Management (Continued) = (E)
(g) Five highest paid individuals (g) EUBRESHMAL

In 2021, the five (2020: five) individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group included
four (2020: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2020: two)
individual during the year are as follows:

A —F AU(ZF_FF: 1A
f)AEESSHMATEERL(ZF
ZRECANEF MUEECHE
BN EXDIT - AFEMNFHir—
f(ZFZF4F - ML) AT B0
T

2021 2020
S —z-zF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Basic salaries, other allowances EAFH ¢ EMEMEEY
and benefits in kind &= 1,140 1,969
Discretionary bonuses HERE 110 73
Pension costs — contribution to BIRKA — B2 EIEDR
MPF scheme 2R 17 36
1,267 2,078

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

EMEE T FIEE

Number of individuals

AEEHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 L% 1,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T E
1,500,00078 7T 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

14. Benefits and Interests of Directors and 14. EENFTEEEAE 2@ R

Key Management (Continued) = (E)
(h) Key management compensation (h) EEEEBAE ZHM
Key management includes all directors presented TEERABREMEESERAM(Z
above and four (2020: three) senior management. The EoTF ) aRERE - MEE
compensation paid or payable to key management for BEEABYNEARERBHE N E
employee services is shown below: SEan T -
2021 2020
=F=—F —ToTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Basic salaries, other allowances AEXFHS - BRI REY
and benefits in kind Mz 11,962 10,912
Discretionary bonuses BisEe 880 692
Pension costs — contribution to R — 8BS FHEIEL
MPF scheme AR 111 108
12,953 11,712
The emoluments of senior management (excluding EBREEEME(TRIEES)E M
directors) are within the following bands: &E

Number of individuals

AEZHE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-EF
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 2

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 82
1,500,000/ 7T 1 1




)) Perennial International Limited 1E#8 & E A R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEWEMT(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y% - MERXE
Right-of-use Furniture
assets  Buildings Leasehold  Plant and and Office Motor  Pleasure  Construction
(note a) (notec) improvements machinery fixtures equipment  vehicles hoats in progress Total
fepEeE Be

(W) (W) BEKE HEREE AGHRKE BOERR nE BE  HRIE A%
HKS000  HKS'000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000

TEn  TER Tén TEr  TErn  TEr  TEr  TER TEn  TER

Netbook valueat ~ R=F=—F
IstJanuary 2021 —fA-AZ

BRSE 114,665 266,122 3,163 10,804 519 3721 2,520 3484 14944 419,948

Addition AE 899 - - 902 - 212 - - 8515 10,528
Reclassificaion ~ ZREENAH

upon completion - 8,187 3,030 3518 - - - - (14,795) -
Disposalsfwrite-off  t:& /H3 - (340) - (174) - (5) - - - (519)
Depreciation ik (4,506) (9,750) (1,253) (3,469) (104) (941) (549) (344) - (20,916)
Revaluation Eff (1.669)  (8722) - - - - - - - (10391)
Exchange EjA%

adjustment 524 6,376 64 243 - 25 18 - 212 7,462
Netbook valieat R-E=—-F

31stDecember ~ TZ-A=1—H

201 LERFE 109,913 261,873 5,004 11,884 415 3,018 1,989 3,140 8876 406,112
At31stDecember A -E-—%

2021 +-A=+-H
At cost KA 35,124 - 18,937 97,113 5,309 15512 7436 14421 8876 202,728
Atvaluation- 2021 fEE-=F=—% 83511 261873 - - - - - - - 345384
Accurulated 2iEinE

depreciation (8,722) - (13,933) (85,229) (4,894) (12,494) (5,447) (11,281) - (142,000)

Net book value FEFE 109913 261,873 5,004 11,884 415 3,018 1,989 3,140 8876 406,112
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e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥¥ - BENRE (&)
(Continued)

Right-of-use Fumiture

assets  Buldings Leasehold  Plantand and Office Motor ~ Pleasure  Construction

(note a) (note ) improvements  machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles boats  inprogress Total
feREaE 7

(Wika)  (Hrikc) HEKE BRENME FARKE BOERE e B ERIE #F
HKS000  HKS000 HS000  HK$000  HKSO000  HKSO0D  HKSO000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS'000
AT TER TRT  TEL  TAT  TEn  TET  TER TAT  TET

Netbook valueat ~R-E-FF
IstJanuary 2020  —f-HZ

SRR 131216 262,289 4312 12,382 677 4137 2,687 3871 - 45N

Addition HE - - - 854 - 476 371 - 14944 16645
Disposalsiwriteoff & /4#i5 - - - 3) - (5 - - - (40)
Depreciation ik (4,929) (9,067) (1,175) (2,782) (158) (937) (580) 387) - (20,005
Revaluation Bf (12:392) 237 - - - - - - - (12,159)
Exchange B A%

adjustment 770 12,653 26 385 - 56 4 - - 13932
Netbookvalieat R-E-TF

31stDecember  tZA=T—H

2020 LEEEE 114665 266,122 3163 10,804 519 3727 2520 3484 14944 419948
At31stDecember R-E-ZE

2020 +-A=+-H
At cost A 34,484 - 15,616 95,579 5219 15,549 7388 14,401 14944 203,200
Atvalugtion-2020 f5E--F-FF 88520 266,122 - - - - - - - 368
Accumulated 2RNE

depreciation (8,339) - (12,453 (84,775) (4,700) (11.822) (4,868) (10937) - (137,894)

Net book value BESE 114686 266,122 3,163 10,804 519 3721 2,520 3484 14944 419,948
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥¥ - BENRE (&)

(Continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FRAEEE
Leasehold Land use
land in rights in Leased
Hong Kong Overseas property Total
LREBR AN
HELH# T fEFRE HEWE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TER TEx
Net book value at WZZEZ—F—A—HBz
1st January 2021 REFE 88,520 26,033 112 114,665
Addition NE - - 899 899
Depreciation e (3,340) (717) (449) (4,506)
Revaluation s (1,669) - - (1,669)
Exchange adjustment i R - 524 - 524
Net book value at RZZE=—F+=A
31st December 2021 —t+—HBzEmFE 83,511 25,840 562 109,913
At 31st December 2021 R-ZEBE-—F
+=-A=+—8
At cost BRA - 34,225 899 35,124
At valuation - 2021 HE-ZE=—F 83,511 - - 83,511
Accumulated depreciation ZREME - (8,385) (337) (8,722)
Net book value BRAFE 83,511 25,840 562 109,913
Leasehold Land use
land in rights in Leased
Hong Kong Overseas property Total
N E AR RGN
HELH THiE AR HEmE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FAT FHEL FHT
Net book value at RZEZZF—-A—Bz
1st January 2020 BREFE 104,720 25,938 558 131,216
Depreciation e (3,808) (675) (446) (4,929)
Revaluation AT (12,392) - - (12,392)
Exchange adjustment BEE i 3% - 770 - 770
Net book value at R-ZZE-ZTF+=A
31st December 2020 =t+—BZEEFE 88,520 26,033 112 114,665
At 31st December 2020 R-ZE_ZF
+-A=1+—~H
At cost BN - 33,592 892 34,484
At valuation - 2020 HE-—F_TF 88,520 - - 88,520
Accumulated depreciation ZRNE - (7,559) (780) (8,339)
Net book value FREF(E 88,520 26,033 112 114,665
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

15. ¥1% - BEKR&RE(E)

(Continued)

(b) Leases (b) HE&E
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a ﬁfﬁﬁi%fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘%?%%@ﬁ)\ﬁ’\ﬁl‘ﬂ‘é‘ﬂ’\]ﬁ
lessee. Lo

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position

WA P BRRKRTHERN SR

The consolidated statement of financial position shows RAMBRARBETUATREESH
the following amounts relating to leases: K& %8
2021 2020
—B--F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Leasehold land in Hong Kong —(URBAENHEELH 83,511 88,520
— Land use rights in overseas — (RO HNE b 5 AR 25,840 26,033
- Leased property —HEmE 562 112
109,913 114,665
Lease liabilities HEAE
- Current — RNEA 454 77
- Non-current —JEBNHR 77 -
531 77

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

(ii)

NEABRRTHRANEE

g?é?éé%%ﬁ%tﬂtéﬁﬁﬂ%*ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
B

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREESERERX
assets
— Leasehold land in Hong Kong —(URBAENHEELH 3,340 3,808
— Land use rights in overseas — (RO HNE T b f5E AR 717 675
- Leased property —HEmE 449 446
4,506 4,929
Interest expense (included in FERX (FFARKER)
finance costs) 17 11
Expenses relating to short-term leases SEHHEEREEEHAEN
and low value leases (included in R (FFATTHREX)
administrative expenses) 37 29

The total cash payment for leases in 2021 was
HK$482,000 (2020: HK$480,000).

RoZ-—F HEZRSURE
§53482000/%E(_7:§T$1

480,000/87T) °



RAaBRERMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

(¢) Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong and factories in
Mainland China were revalued on the basis of buildings in
open market value by market approach or/and depreciated
replacement cost approach, by Ascent Partners Valuation
Service Limited (2020: Centaline Surveyors Limited),
an independent firm of chartered surveyor. Factories in
Vietnam were revalued on the basis of open market value by
depreciated replacement cost approach by VAS Valuation Co.,
Ltd., an independent firm of chartered surveyor. The following
tables analyse the land and buildings carrying at fair value, by

valuation techniques.

Fair value hierarchy

Perennial International Limited E#B % B B R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. ¥1% - BEKR&RE(E)

(c)

Quoted prices
in active other

URAEENHEET M PEFRPEAENT
TR B A ER Y AR EAAER AR
(ZZ2 =% pRAIEMITAR DG IRE
FAMMEZREFHME AR, RITES
BRAEE o (AR TR A B
Bl ER7TVAS Valuation Co., Ltd. 32 AR
Bz HEFHITEEERALERG - W&
FINEFBEERTAITIRASBEAERENL
Hh AR o

DNREEHR

Fair value measurements at

31st December 2021 using
—E--H+=ZA=t-H
ERAUTHANAAENE

Significant

Significant

markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HEREER BEAKEAM DN
SEERTISHRE ABE@A FABEHA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—%) (F=#%) (B=8)
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements & E MR (EFE
Leasehold land or/and buildings: ME sk, RIEF -
—in Hong Kong — fRES - - 95,300
—in Mainland China — IR B AR - - 201,691
—in Vietnam — RN - - 48,393
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

15. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

(¢) (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-F-—F4+ A=

FALEEE

15. ¥1% - BEKR&RE(E)

(c)

(&

D AERERER)

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2020 using
—EZEF+ZA=+—H
RN TRANAAENE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
BREEE ERMEM E-DN:)
TS IR(E ABEHA TAEEE A
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—#) (F=®) (F=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAT
Recurring fair value measurements & B4R REE
Leasehold land or/and buildings: RS+t REF :
—in Hong Kong — RIREE - - 100,400
—in Mainland China — AR BIARE - - 212,020
~in Vietnam — (IR - - 42,222

The Group's policy is to recognise transfer into and transfer
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There was no transfer among levels 1, 2, and 3 during the
year.

As one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market date, the property, plant and equipment of
the Group is categorised as level 3.

AEEZBRRNEHBB 2 S HIREE

A MEREARBHAR

RERNE— - ZR=HA2HE

BEER -

WEER o

A —IRSR ZIAE N AN SER BRI B 5T
SRR BUNKEME  BELREREIER

FE=R-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBREMFE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥¥ - BENRE (&)

(Continued)
()  (Continued) () (&)
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable NEAEARFRTHEHANDIAETE
inputs (Level 3) (=)
31st December 2021
—®=—F+=f=+-8
Leasehold Factories in
land in  Buildings in Mainland Factories in
Hong Kong  Hong Kong China Vietnam Total
NREBM UREBZ LR LA
HELH BF AEZIK ZIK e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET FTET FTER FET
At 1st January 2021 WZZE-_—5—A—H 88,520 11,880 212,020 42,222 354,642
Reclassification upon EREENDE
completion - - - 8,187 8,187
Write-off i - - - (340) (340)
Depreciation e (3,340) (448) (8,089) (1,213) (13,090)
Revaluation (deficit)/ = (B4, Bt
surplus (1,669) 357 (8,272) (807) (10,391)
Exchange adjustment b 5 - - 6,032 344 6,376
At 31st December RW_ZE-_—F
2021 +-F=+—H 83,511 11,789 201,691 48,393 345,384

Revaluation deficit for the fEARA BRI EA

year included in the EERSFRR P
consolidated BRANEE 2B
income statement B4

under ‘other
operating expenses, net’ - - (2,617) (807) (3,424)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

(c) (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021

BE—F-—F+-H=1—HIFE

15. ¥1% - BEKR&RE(E)

(c)

(%)
NAEXFTITBEGANAARENE
(=) (&)

31st December 2020
T EFE+ZA=+—H

Leasehold Factories in
land in Buildings in Mainland Factories in
Hong Kong Hong Kong China Vietnam Total
UREBE UREEZ (DANG R
HETH BF AEZIR Z T pk]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1st January 2020 —T-TF—-HA—H 104,720 12,710 205,865 43,714 367,009
Depreciation ?ﬁ% (3,808) (462) (7,497) (1,008) (12,865)
Revaluation (deficit)/ (AL, B
surplus (12,392) (368) 990 (385) (12,155)
Exchange adjustment b 5 - - 12,662 (9 12,653
At 31st December i i
2020 +ZA=+—~H 88,5620 11,880 212,020 42,222 354,642
Revaluation surplus/ ERAEBRRNEf
(deficit) for the year EERSFRR P
included in the WRAEE 2 &
consolidated B/ (Bi)
income statement
under ‘other
operating expenses, net’ - - 139 (360) (221)
Valuation processes of the Group AEBMOEERRE

The Group's leasehold land and buildings were valued at
31st December 2021 and 2020 by independent professional
qualified valuers who hold recognised relevant professional
qualifications and have recent experience in the locations and
segments of the land and buildings valued. For all leasehold
land and buildings, their current use equates to the highest and
best use.

The Group's finance department considered and discussed the
valuations performed by the independent valuers for financial
reporting purposes, including all key inputs to the valuations
and property valuations movements as compared to the prior
year. The fair values of the properties have been determined by
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited and VAS Valuation
Co., Ltd. (2020: Centaline Surveyors Limited and VAS Valuation
Co., Ltd.)

AREENHEE T30 MR FRBI EXRMAEM
E-EZ- kT TF+_H=+—H
HE IS HEMSARRRT EXER
f[’[%ﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬂ’ﬂiiﬁ&%?ﬂ@%%ﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
K - A HEDHRET  EARK
ERENABRRANREER -

AEBE IS E MRS B B (HER
R EETE R KRR BREYHENAE
FEHAMYEGHBERLFELERTHE
B o W EMENAABECHIATELAE
IR A& K% VAS Valuation Co., Ltd.(ZZT ==
& pIRBIERITAR AR KX VAS Valuation
Co., Ltd )EETE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ek

R PR (A8 )

For the year ended 31st December 2021

BEr—-F—

—F1+ A=+ —HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

Valuation techniques

For leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong, the valuation
was determined using the market comparison approach
with reference to comparable transactions available in the
relevant market. Sales prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size, character and location. The most significant input
into this valuation approach is price per square foot.

For factories in Mainland China and Vietnam, the valuations
were determined using depreciated replacement cost approach
with reference to the cost to reproduce or replace in new
condition the buildings appraised in accordance with current
construction costs for similar building and structures in the
locality, with allowance for accrued depreciation as evidence
by observed condition or obsolescence present. These inputs
include:

Cost of construction

Cost per square metre to completion estimated by the valuer
using direct market comparables and taking into account the
useful life and size of the property and its facilities as at 31st
December 2021 and 2020.

Estimated depreciation

Deducting all sources of depreciation by straight-line method
over the useful life, including physical deterioration and
functional and economic obsolescence and adjusting by the
physical condition of the building.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31st
December 2021

15. ¥1% - BEKR&RE(E)

(c)

(&)

fRE R
UREBNEEL LB THBESERR
M5 A LR S RIS L BOARE © 4
AT EMENEEE R T2 RHH(PINY
FHE  MERGE)NEREHIE - Y
I EENRERNBARE T ROBS o

R BIARE K i ) TR & {E - ARIRARRE
HoF B AR IB T R ENBERA - §E
MEFUEMREEREIMANKA RS
Z FIRFEEERAEETE - Wit ARE
BRBIMAOR I RER R 2 AT E R
ZEBMABHE

BRRA

HEMR =GR -_ZE-_FTF+_-A
=+ —HBEREEMB LR AT LT AY
¥RHESENEAFHAmEmNGETOEF
FARTERRA ©

fEEHinE

JE PR ELAR A B TR 1E Al A A BN FIRL S 2R
RRITE - BREERIBEMDEEMEREE
WIERE - WIREFEERMK LM IEL A% -

FAMERMILEES) -

R-B-—F+_A=+—HBEFERAEATRH
BEGANAABESENER(E=R)

Relationship of unobservable

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
gl fR{E Il TR RE A FABERAHAABNER
Factory in Heyuan, Depreciated Average cost of construction of The higher the estimated cost per
Mainland China replacement cost RMB1,700 (2020: RMB1,700) square metre to completion,
LA HR B K B R Y approach per square metre the higher the fair value.
TR WESEXRE FHREBRAREBTHRARE SPKERMGF KA - A0

1,7007n( =2 =FF : ARK

1,7007T)

Estimated depreciation over the
remaining useful lives of 38
years (2020: 41 and 47 years for At &S

B -

The higher the estimated
depreciation, the lower the fair
value.

NAEMIE -

different construction phase of

buildings)

A AFH3sFE (T -TF
RIEFTRIZERBEERM A RE
HARA R A7 5 )t E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BEZF-—F1THA=F—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥¥ - BENRE (&)

(Continued)
(c)  (Continued) () (&)
Information about fair value measurements using ]}(‘_ = _—%+-A=+—H FﬁEt’FEI
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31st BERANDAESBHER(EZR) (H)
December 2021 (Continued)
Relationship of unobservable
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
g fRE Il TG A FHERRAYH DR ENBR
Factory in Shenzhen, Depreciated Average cost of construction of The higher the estimated cost per
Mainland China replacement cost RMB3,462-RMB3,666 (2020: square metre to completion,
e NlE NSl approach RMB3,850) per square metre the higher the fair value.
TR TEEERARE FRENABTFETRKARE  SEFKERETAARR - AR

34627t — AR#3,66670(=F B -
—ZT4 : AR¥3,8507T)
The higher the estimated

Estimated depreciation over the depreciation, the lower the fair

remaining useful lives of 21 and value.

34 (2020: 25 and 37) years for  fAFHTEMS - AREBIE o

different construction phase of

building
REFIRER ﬁ%ﬁxﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁ FHA

21 FER3AF(ZT-TF : 25

FRI7E )T E

Factory in Vietnam Depreciated Average cost of construction of The higher the estimated cost per
AR B R ) TR replacement cost US$263 (2020: US$258) per square metre to completion,
approach square metre the higher the fair value.
MESEXRE FHREBRKARETHK263FT BT AKERMEEFRAER - AR
(ZZ T4 : 258%7T) B -
Estimated depreciation over the ~ The higher the estimated
remaining useful lives from 23 depreciation, the lower the fair
to 39 years (2020: 39 and 24 value.

years) for different construction fAFHTERS @+ AAEBIE -
phase of building
REFTRER ﬁ%ﬁxﬁ’]‘ﬂiﬁﬁ FHR
K23FE39F (=TT F : 39
FR24F)BEHTE

Leasehold land and Direct comparison Sales prices, HK$11,776 (2020: The higher the sales price per
buildings in Hong approach HK$13,484) per square foot of square foot of a comparable
Kong BEEEERE a comparable property in close property in close proximity, the

UREBNHEE LR proximity higher the fair value.
gF WAREMEHEEERET IR BEAFRZAMEEYEFEEES

11,776 BT (ZE_FF : Mm o ARER e

13,4847 7T)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEWEMT(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021

EZF - —FT A= HIEFE

16.

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥¥ - BENRE (&)

(Continued)

(d) The net book value of these leasehold land and buildings (d) WMZEHELHREFDIREERNAZE
would have been HK$147,485,000 (2020: HK$141,243,000) ELARABRREENER - AIZERER
had they been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation on FEFE /147,485,000 T (Z T T4 -
the historical cost basis. 141,243,000/ 7T) ©

(e) At 31st December 2021, the net book value of leasehold () RZZT=Z—F+ZA=+—H BEEFE
land and office located in Hong Kong, which were pledged 90,900,000/ 7t (= Z =Z 4 : 100,400,000
as security for the Group's bank borrowings amounted to BIL)ZNREBZHELIHERAE ' B
HK$90,900,000 (2020: HK$100,400,000). VERREBIRITIE R Z AR -

() Included in the total depreciation expenses, amounting to ()  @IFELEEH154030008T( T =
HK$15,403,000 (2020: HK$13,986,000) and HK$5,513,000 T4 : 13,986,000% 7T ) 5t A SHE KA K&
(2020: HK$6,019,000) were charged to cost of sales and 5,513,000 (=T = Z 4 : 6,019,000/
administrative expenses, respectively. TORTAITERRAX -

Investment Properties 16. REY

2021 2020
—E—F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
At fair value BARE

Opening balance at 1st January R—A— B Z V% 42,980 47,200

Revaluation gain/(loss) charged to the ~ B4rAEREXIB 2
consolidated income statement B, (BX) 120 (4,220)
Closing balance at 31st December R+ A=+—HZHRepE 43,100 42,980

(@) Amounts of (i) rental income and (ii) direct operating
expenses from the investment properties, which were
recognised in the consolidated income statement, are
disclosed in note 6 and 8 respectively.

(b) As at 31st December 2021, the carrying amount of
investment properties pledged as security for the
Group's bank borrowings amounted to HK$27,800,000
(2020: HK$25,850,000).

(c) As at 31st December 2021 and 2020, the Group has no
unprovided contractual obligations for future repairs and
maintenance.

(d)  For the minimum lease payments receivables on leases
of investment properties, refer to note 26(b).

(a)

(b)

RIRA BB ) U K18
By EREERY 2B BRI
6 R EBHE -

RN-ZE-_—F+_A=+—H " &M@
& A27,800,0008 T( T T &F :
25,850,000/ ) 2 IR EWME - BIEA
REBRITERZIEM -

RZE-Z—FR-_ZE_ZTF+_A
—t+—H AEBEIEEREZHEER
REBBZABBENEL -

BRAMKREERERI  REAERN
K B2 E26(b) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. Investment Properties (Continued)

(e)

The Group’s investment properties are held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties through sale. The Group has
measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties using the
tax rate and the tax bases that are consistent with the
expected manner of recovery of these investment
properties.

Investment properties were revalued on the basis of
open market valued by direct comparison approach
by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited (2020:
Centaline Surveyors Limited), an independent firm
of chartered surveyors, as at 31st December 2021.
The revaluation gains or losses are included in ‘other
operating expenses, net’ in the consolidated income
statement. The following table analyses the investment
properties carried at fair value, by valuation techniques.

Fair value hierarchy

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

16. REW=X (&)

(e)

RAAEEREME 2B - 5HEKH
EMHEFBRB D IEMEAREEF
o ARBEEEREZFREMEEN
WEDA—BZRERBE  TEHH
FZERENMEZERER S N IRIER
g .

R -_—F+-_A=+—H " &E&Y
¥mBUEEGEMMATEZRER
NEN(ZEZZFF  pFRBIZRMTER
NENEARMEZEEFREELE
EEL - BEHBRIETALGEEBERT
[E&em> 558 IR - TRAINEFA
g@&ﬁiﬁﬁﬁi@ﬁ@)\ﬂ%ﬁ@&ﬁ%

DIREEBR

Fair value measurements at

31st December 2021 using
—B--§+=ZA=+-H
ERAUTHMANALETE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HREER BERMNHEAM BEXRM
SEERM S HRE ABEHA FABRHA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Description it (E—#) (=) (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR THER
Recurring fair value REERRETE
measurement
Investment properties REME - - 43,100
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEWEMT(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-—F-—F+-FA=1+—HIFE

16. Investment Properties (Continued)
(f)  (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

16. REWX (&)

0 (@) -
D[AERBRGE)

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2020 using
ZECEE+ZA=1—H
FAUATHANRAAEITE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HREET ERMEM E-WN:()
ERM ISR RE AEEHA TAEREE A
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Description it (B—4) (B=%) (F=40)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET
Recurring fair value KEEAREE
measurement
Investment properties REME - - 42,980

The Group's policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfers.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

As one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market date, the investment properties of
the Group are categorised as level 3.

Valuation processes of the Group
See note 15(c) for valuation processes of the Group.

Valuation techniques

The valuation of investment properties was determined
using the market approach with reference to
comparable transactions available in the relevant
market. Sales prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes
such as property size, character and location. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is price per
square foot.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

REEZ MR ENEHER 2 FFIR
BEPHREIRBEAXBELRIAERE

FANE—  ZR=PHEHEER o

F —TE sk % TE B A A IEIR I AT £
RMIBHEE  MAEBREYNESEE
F=M o

AERE R G ERE
E2 BN 150 A R EM A ERIRH

e

BB

BEMENBESERUTBALE
SFBTIBEEE » EABL AT LB %
MEED R E R (DI E@EHE -
MR KB ) B R AR SR o Hubfh
EENREABARE T HROMER -

FABERMALEZLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
HE—F-——F+_A=1—HIFE

16. Investment Properties (Continued) 16. IREWHE(E)
() (Continued) (f) (&)
Information about fair value measurements R=-B-_—F+=-H=+—H
using significant unobservable inputs FERAEAFTITHRERGANDIA
(Level 3) as at 31st December 2021 B ENER(E=ZR)
Relationship of unobservable
Description Valuation technique ~ Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
#f5 fRER TABE@RARE FTUBRRRABBEL L EZBR
Land and buildings in Market approach (1) Sales prices, HK$4,833 (2020: The higher the sales prices per square
Hong Kong (IR0 HK$4,827) per square foot foot of a comparable property in
REBZ THRET of a comparable property in close proximity, the higher the fair
close proximity value
BORENEHEBRET A BEARBEEENEHEBEY
R4,833FT(ZE-FF - 5 AREES
4,8277%7T)

(2) Sales prices, HK$12,741 (2020:
HK$14,263) per square foot
of a comparable property in
close proximity

WIRENEEEERESTH
R1274BL(ZE 255 -
14,263%70)
17. Inventories 17. E&
2021 2020
—g-—x e
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Raw materials M 58,684 45,778
Work in progress TR 20,280 13,803
Finished goods BURK 89,323 64,242
168,287 123,823
Provision for inventories FERE (6,745) (6,471)
161,542 117,352
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included BFERARERSERILYIATHEE KA ]
in "cost of sales” amounted to HK$199,288,000 (2020: H’Jé%ﬁz%199,2§8,000/%75(_ —?\ﬁ,
HK$148,564,000). Provision for inventories of HK$80,000 148, 564 ooo,%éfrc) 5 & # 45 80,000%8 7T
(2020: HK$154,000) was included in “cost of sales” in the —EZ-F4F 154,000 70) D it A AR

consolidated income statement. mR[HEMA] -
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RE BB mARNE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE—F-——F+-H=14—HIFEF

18. Trade and Bill Receivables 18. ESBWRIEREWRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Up to 3 months BIHEAZE =& A 66,954 54,502
4-6 months PY{E A =758 A 7,662 2,957
Over 6 months BB E A 11,238 16,395
Trade receivables, gross (note (a)) 2 2 e IE 4% (X (a) 85,854 73,854
Loss allowance BBE (10,358) (16,790)
Trade receivables, net H 5 IR F 5 75,496 57,064
Bills receivables R E I 2,514 1,578
78,010 58,642
(a) At 31st December 2021, the aging analysis of gross @ WZZEZ—F+-A=1+—H ZE58
trade receivables is based on invoice date. WkTE R BRE TR IE R ZEH o
T o
(b) Trade and bill receivables are denominated in the b) B5EWNIEREREZEA T %t
following currencies: B :
2021 2020
:S:—E — 7 —= E'E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HK$ BT 7,665 11,685
RMB ARE 13,538 6,879
US$ Eyiv 56,807 40,078
78,010 58,642
() The carrying value of trade and bill receivables ) BIEKGEREKEE RMERL
approximate their fair values due to their short term NAEEHEEGER -
maturities.
(d) Information about the provision of loss allowance of the d BAHEBZEUKFESERERAEEER

trade receivables and the Group's exposure to credit

risk can be found in note 3.1(iv).

FREERRHER AT 2BMEES.1 (V) ©
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e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

19. Derivative Financial Instruments 19. fTES€BMTHE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FH&T
Financial assets at fair value through  EASEFABZE A ALEE
profit or loss and included in the REMBHRARBREEERN
Group's consolidated statement of VEEE
financial position as current assets
Foreign exchange forward contracts ~ SMNEEREFE A 28 2,692

The Group has certain outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts with external reputable banks with long positions
in VND (2020: RMB and VND) for hedging its purchase
transactions and operating expenses denominated in
VND (2020: RMB and VND) . The fair value of the foreign
exchange forward contracts is determined by using valuation
techniques. The valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. As all significant inputs
regarded to fair value on instruments are observable, the
instruments are included in level 2.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts at 31st December 2021 were
approximately US$600,000 (2020: US$7,800,000).

20. Cash and Cash Equivalents

AEBEINBEBRIFZ|/ITAER T HARE
TZNERBAEK  PERBERE(ZT=F
FAREBRBREE)RR - AEHREARR
B(ZZF_FF : ARBMBEmME)FHENER
B 5 RBER - SNERBAMNZ ARIE
TERABERMNET - AEXMEENBA
BRmSBE(WE) S8 VKEERZE
EfbE  HRFTETAZAREMBZMA
BERBARABREE - AZSTAIIA
HE e

R-ZE-—F+-A=+—8  HkETZ
INEIRHEAA 42 B FE A S FH)5600,0003
JTL(ZZEZZ4F : 7,800,000%7T) °

20. RERBEEEY

2021 2020
—g-—f e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT T

Cash at banks and in hand RITREFRE

19,308 22,370
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For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE—F-——F+-H=14—HIFEF

20. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 20. RE&RIREZEEYW(E)
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the RIBERREAEEZAEERRERITRS
reporting period of the Group is cash at banks amounting to #$18,916,0008 T(ZZF =F 4 : 22,134,000

HK$18,916,000 (2020: HK$22,134,000). BIT) °

2021 2020
—E—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Denominated in: HEER
HK$ BT 5,086 6,724
RMB AR 2,744 1,410
US$ ETT 10,365 13,529
Other currencies EfbEEk 1,113 707
19,308 22,370

AR EIEAEP BARE R B 2 RITAEMRNIR
®1F 35 B4 7%2,660,0005% 7T 1 2,069,000

Included in the balance are bank balances and cash
deposited in Mainland China and Vietnam of approximately

HK$2,660,000 and HK$2,069,000 (2020: HK$1,207,000 and B (ZZEZZ4F 1 1,207,000/%8 7T &% 402,000
HK$402,000), respectively, which are mainly denominated BL) HFBUARB R MG AEBEN
in RMB and VND and are subject to the exchange control A 52 BR A AR B A B K i R B e 2 N
restrictions imposed by the governments in Mainland China HIFRAE o
and Vietnam.
21. Share Capital 21. R
No. of shares HK$'000
s FHET
Authorised JETERRAR
At 1st January 2020 and RZEZTF—F— Ei&
31st December 2020 and 2021, ZERIRERITF
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each +=A=+—8"
HREE0.108 T2 ik 500,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid BT REUR R
At 1st January 2020 and RZZEZTF—H— El &
31st December 2020 and 2021, ZECEFERIFT—F
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each +=ZA=+—8"
SIRAE0. 10757 2 EiB% 198,958,000 19,896




Annual Report 2021 4F 3R @

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021

BHE-_F-—F+-A=+—HUFE

22. Trade Payables and Other Payables, 22. € 5 FE{f R E K H it FE 3 &

Accruals and Contract Liabilities

H - EARXRENAE

2021 2020

—EB-—F T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Trade payables (note (a)) ST EIE (5T @) 22,714 23,737

Other payables and accruals Hib BN HRIB R ERTF X 19,337 21,706

Contract liabilities (note (b)) EREEME®D) - 924

Total (notes (c) and (d)) #RFE (P sk (o) &(d)) 42,051 46,367

Notes: MisE

(a) At 31st December 2021, the ageing analysis of trade payables (@ RZTE-—F+ZA=+—H0 BZENK

based on invoice date is as follows:

ARBEZARZREDITAT

2021 2020

—E—F —EEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAExT

Up to 3 months BIERZ= = 1@ A 22,216 23,668
4-6 months mEAZENEA 472 -
Over 6 months BidNEA 26 69
22,714 23,737

(b) Last year balance represents non-refundable receipt in advance (b)
for outstanding performance obligation of goods delivery to
customers. The amount has been fully recognised into revenue
during the year. There is no outstanding contract liabilities as at
year end.

(c) Trade payables and other payables and accruals are (c)
denominated in the following currencies:

EFENERERARPINERNRETE
ENATRETANKIEA - FRIEERFUAED R
FAERRKE - ARFREBEREENS
HafkE-

5 84 OB I A4 OB R B B4
THIEHEHE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
HKS BT 8,692 11,455
RMB AR 22,471 24,767
Us$ ETT 8,461 8,890
Other currencies HibEE 2,427 1,255
42,051 46,367
(d)  The carrying value of trade payables and other payables and (d BHENRIEIEMENFIERESRSZ 2

accruals approximate their fair values due to their short term
maturities.

REEREARERNRLIEGER -
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For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE—F-——F+-H=14—HIFEF

23.

Borrowings 23. B

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Current liabilities REERE
Trust receipt loans IR E R 14,372 8,527
Bank loans H|ITER 60,000 37,200
Total borrowings “BIER 74,372 45,727

Total borrowings included secured liabilities of HK$74,372,000
(2020: HK$38,527,000), which are secured by certain land
and buildings and investment properties of the Group (notes
15 and 16). All borrowings are also supported by limited
guarantees given by the Company and certain subsidiaries.

(@) The maturity of borrowings in accordance with the
repayment schedule (without taking into account the
repayment on-demand clause) is as follows:

fﬁi"@ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ 74,372,000 (=&
—FF 38,627,000 C) UAEENET £
m&@+&&£%¥¢ﬁwwwa5&m>
EIERIIBEARTRETHBARRES
ﬁﬁm%

(a) MRIBEREHER(ALESEEREE
B BREEATT

Bank loans Trust receipt loans
RITEM EERBEER
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B--F i 2 —B--F i 2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT FHL FHET FHAT
Within 1 year 1R 60,000 37,200 14,372 8,627
60,000 37,200 14,372 8,627
(o) The average effective interest rates per annum as at b) RZEBEZ—F+-A=+—HMFHE
31st December 2021 are as follows: BREFIEINT -

2021 2020
—B-—F —TETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
Trust receipt loans ErEBEE R 1.58% 3.10%
Bank loans BITEN 1.60% 2.78%

(c)  Borrowings are mainly denominated in HK$.

(d)  The carrying value of borrowings approximates their fair

values.

() MERETENETHE -

(d) (EFREREEEEQERLD -
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For the year ended 31st December 2021
BEZF-—F1THA=F—HIFE

24. IRERESTHWEMIEA
ST AZEHBEREERNR TYEE -

24. Financial Instruments by Category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been
applied to the line items below:

Financial
instruments
Financial at fair value
instruments at through profit
amortised cost or loss
R BRAARBERA
JlRzemMIA BRMEEMIA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
31st December 2021 —E-—4H+=-B=+—H
Assets as per consolidated NRGEMBRRARZERE
statement of financial position
Trade and bill receivables E 5 e RIE R R R 1R 78,010 -
Derivative financial instruments TESmIEA - 28
Other receivables and deposits HEmEEIERE] S 5,744 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 19,308 -
103,062 28
Liabilities as per consolidated JIINGEMBRRRZEE
statement of financial position
Trade payables B S ENFIE 22,714 -
Other payables H e FRIE 6,389 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 531 -
Bank loans RITER 60,000 -
Trust receipt loans ErEBEE R 14,372 -
104,006 -
31st December 2020 —E2-EF¥+=-A=+—H
Assets as per consolidated JIRGEMBRARZEE
statement of financial position
Trade and bill receivables B 5 FE U GRIE I eI = 1k 58,642 -
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMIA - 2,592
Other receivables and deposits HEMEKEIERETS 5,749 -
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 22,370 -
86,761 2,592
Liabilities as per consolidated JIRGRERBRRRZERE
statement of financial position
Trade payables & S e FRIA 23,737 -
Other payables EAb B FRIR 8,694 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 77 -
Bank loans RITERK 37,200 -
Trust receipt loans EFEYBUEER 8,627 -

78,235 -
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25. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 25. SRR E&RE R
of Cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before (a) BE(FA) EENFHRLHE
taxation to net cash (used in)/generated BRELADEF, (BB 2R
from operations

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELATR A (E51E) 15,096 (21,372)
Interest income AEWA (13) (27)
Interest expense A EFRX 1,262 1,675
Gain on disposal/write-off of & MEYE - BB &K
property, plant and equipment Wz (282) 3)
(Gain)/loss on revaluation of BEMESH(AE) 18K
investment properties (120) 4,220
Revaluation deficit of buildings ~ #EFE {4 E4H 3,424 221
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #% - BB ML ETE
and equipment 20,916 20,005
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ E S WA CRESERD),
impairment loss on trade SHRRERE
receivables (727) 15,719
Provision for slow-moving ERTFERETE
inventories, net 80 154
Operating profit before working ~ &E & & EE i 2 KL%
capital changes il 39,636 20,592
— Inventories - B (39,489) (5,387)
- Trade and bill receivables and ~ — B 5 EUEIE K&
other receivables, deposits JEW B R Bt
and prepayments FEUGRIA ~ 5T &
SSEIRp/OE (18,674) 7,060
— Derivative financial — PTESBIA
instruments 2,564 (2,097)
- Trade payables and other — B RENFIER
payables and accruals Eo e FRIE
JEFTRA (5,081) 8,292

Net cash (used in)/generated EiE(FTA),EER
from operations FIRE (21,044) 28,460
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25. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 25. SR ERERHZT(E)
of Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) Analysis of disposal of property, plant and (b) HEWE  BERZREDN
equipment
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds EGEReERERAN  HEME BE
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: KRBTSR
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FBT
Net book value BREFE 519 40
Gain on disposal/write-off of HE MEYE  BE
property, plant and equipment KRR 282 3

Proceeds from sale of property, HEWE - BENEE

plant and equipment Fr 135K 801 43
(c) Non-cash investing and financing activity (¢) IBERERMETH
A non-cash investing and financing activity relating to HINEFEEEESERBZIFRSIRE R
acquisition of a right-of-use asset is disclosed in note BB EE AW 151 EE -
15.
(d) Analysis of changes in cash flows from (d) REZHRERESHRELSTD
financing activities #r
Bank loans Trust receipt loans Lease liabilities
BITER EERBEN HEAE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

“E--% CZECR§ ZZ--F ZE-TF “E--F ZECEF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET T T FAT T T

At 1st January »—A—H 37,200 37,000 8,527 31,435 77 528
Additions HE 35,000 10,000 91,196 46,934 899 -
Repayments B3 (12,200) (9,800) (85,351) (69,842) (445) (451)

At31st December R+ =A=1+—H 60,000 37,200 14,372 8,527 531 77




Perennial International Limited E#B % B B R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE BB mARNE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE—F-——F+-H=14—HIFEF

26. Commitments
(a) Capital commitments
At 31st December 2021, the Group had the following
capital commitments for property, plant and equipment:

26. FiE
(a) BEAENE
R-ZE-—F+=-A=+—H ~&EE
BULATYE BB MR E 2 EAFRE

2021 2020

:g:_ﬂi — 7 — E'E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBT FT

Contracted but not provided for 23] 4B KRB - 2,561

(b) Commitments under operating lease as
lessor
At 31st December 2021, the Group had future
aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

(b) BAHMEAEEBE R
R=Z=——F+-A=+—H  A%H
B ARG S E R B 142 RIKREIR
REFERBOT :

Land and buildings

T RIEF
2021 2020
:§:_¢ — 7 — E'E
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Within one year —FR 1,426 1,444
Between one year and two years —FEZE R F 770 1,169
2,196 2,613

27. Financial Guarantees and Pledge B RS R 2 3K 48

At 31st December 2021, the Group had the following banking
facilities, of which approximately HK$128,040,000 (2020:
HK$173,040,000) were secured by limited guarantee from
the Company and by legal charges over certain land and
buildings and investment properties of the Group with a
total carrying value of approximately HK$118,700,000 (2020:
HK$126,250,000).

RZE-_—F+_A=+—H ' A£EE
LAT%ETT b & - E A 49128,040, ooo,%rc
(ZZT=F 4 : 173,040,000 7T ) A AR

BT 42 it ZEW*{%&;K%@HEWE%#\%@
118,700,000/ 7L( =& = Z4F : 126,250,000
B2 ET L REFRIEEMEEZE
TERCEH o

2021 2020

—E-F —E-THF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FBT

Trade and loan finance facilities B REFRME 128,040 193,040
Forward exchange contract line RAINER KVEEE 82,389 81,903




28. Ultimate Holding Company

The Directors of the Company regard Spector Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
as being the ultimate holding company and Mr. Mon Chung

29.
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Hung as being the ultimate controlling party.

Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BEZF-—F1THA=F—HIFE

28. RAREZER DT
ARREERAERBRZESTMK L2
Spector Holdings Limited JY & A& 1A% A &) K
BRSBTS -

29. ifEB A A
R-ZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—B KXQFEH

December 2021: THEEMBE AR :
Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/registered
Name establishment capital/charter capital Principal activities Interest
BRTREZRE/
£ /R AER/HTER TEEH B&
2021 2020
—E-- “E3CEE
Shares held directly
ERGERG
Perennial Holdings Global Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment holding 100% 100%
ABRAES el RERR
Shares held indirectly
BREERG
Ever Peak Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3 Property holding 100% 100%
KEEERRAR B LER3ET RENE
Glitter Wire & Cable Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500 Investment holding 100% 100%
Limited B ERRE00ET RERK
RESHEEERAA
Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000
BRFEETRD
20000007
New Technology Cable Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 License holding 100% 100%
fMERERAR B L1008 RERR
Non-voting Deferred
HK$10,000,000
ERTEELRN
10,000,000
Perennial Cable (H.K) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000 Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
EHER(ER)ERAT BA E38172,000,000%7 wires, wire hamess and
accessories

BEER 8K HAGR
REf



@ Perennial International Limited E#B % B B R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEWEMT(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

29. Subsidiaries (Continued) 29. B AT (&)

Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/registered
Name establishment capital/charter capital Principal activities Interest
BRTRAERE/
t /R E-CYETN-U IERH B
2021 2020
—E-- “ECEF

Shares held indirectly (Continued)

HEEERR (&)

Perennial Cable Limited

EHEHARAA

Perennial Cable (Shenzhen| Co.,

Limited (wholly owned foreign

enterprise) note (a))

EZER(AERAA (25K

BasEE) (Ha)
Perennial Plastics (H.K.) Limited
BHER(EE)ERAR
Perennial Cable (BVI) Limited
BHERBVIERLA

New Technology Cable Pte.
Limited (note (c))(Fiz¥(a)

Shinka K K. note () (FitzEel)
Perennial USA Inc.

(note (b))
(F53 (o))

Shenzhen Welldone Trading Co.,

Limited (note (a))
MIESEEREHERAA
(Fi35a))

British Virgin Islands
EEl e

Mainland China
AR

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
ABRNES

Singapore

R

Japan
A%

United States of
America

e

Mainland China
AR

Ordinary US$1
LEmET

Registered capital
HK$65,000,000
A 465,000,000

Ordinary HK$2
LEkET

Ordinary US$50,000
£10i50,000%

Ordinary SG$2
LERGTIET
Qrdinary JPY10,000,000
£#710,000,00087T

Ordinary US$1
LamET

Registered capital
HK$1,000,000
T A1,000,000E 7

Investment and property
holding
RERFENR

Manufacturing of electric
cables, wires and wire
hamess

§E5E  EERARER

Trading of plastic resins and
compounds

EEPBAHERRIAY

Investment holding

REER

License holding

AR

License holding

FRRE

Trading of electric cables,
wires, wire harness and
accessories

BESH B85 B4 5R
REH

Trading of electric cables,
wires, wire harness and
accessories

BEEL 85 B4R
REH

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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29. Subsidiaries (Continued) 29. B A (%)
Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/registered
Name establishment capital/charter capital Principal activities Interest
BRTREZRE/
&R /R iftEs/HTER IERH B
2021 2020
TEC-F e S 2
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
BEEERG(R)
Shenzhen Perennial Plasticsand ~ Mainland China Registered capital HK$40,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
Metal Co, Limited (note (a)) ~ PELAEE AR 40,000,007 electric cables, wires,
MIESEBREERAA wire hamess and
(M5t accessories
WERHEES B
BRRRRAN
Shenzhen Perennial Plastics Co,, ~ Mainland China Registered capital HK$10,000,000 Manufacturing and sale 100% 100%
Limited (note (2] REAE FHRE10,000,00057 of plastic resins and
MEREBER LA () compounds
BERKELBARERR
e
Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Mainland China Registered capital RMB65,000,000  Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
Metal Co, Limited (note (c)) ~ REIARE AR AR 65,000,000 electric cables, wires,
MRESEBRLERDA wire hamess and
(Pr3(c)) accessories
PERHESE g5 4
AERRAM
Perennial Cable (Vietnam| Co,, Vietnam Charter capital US$8,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
Limited fnote (f)(FF&E() i FFIE 788,000,005 T electric cables, wires,
wire hamess and
accessories
SEREESE g5 4
AERREM
New Technology Cable (Vietnam)  Vietnam Charter capital VND577,750,000 License Holding 100% 100%
Limited (note (f) (Fi5E() il FAAR577,750,0008 8% FEHR
The legal form of all the above companies is limited liability FERFHABERAGEE o

company.
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BEr—-F—

—F1+ A=+ —HIFE

29. Subsidiaries (Continued)
Save as noted below, the above companies operate
principally in Hong Kong instead of their respective places of
incorporation/establishment, except for:

(a)

Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Limited, Shenzhen
Welldone Trading Co., Limited, Shenzhen Perennial
Plastics and Metal Co., Limited and Shenzhen Perennial
Plastics Co., Limited are in Shenzhen, the PRC.
Perennial USA Inc. is in the United States of America.

Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Metal Co., Limited is in
Heyuan, the PRC.

New Technology Cable Pte. Limited is in Singapore.

Shinka K.K. is in Japan.

Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co., Limited and New
Technology Cable (Vietnam) Limited are in Vietnam.

29.

Ff 8 2 =) (4R
RO TSN - PRARZ BEHEEES
B T IE R BRI, P -

(a)

BRERCRIDARAR - RYIEKE
BEREHERARF - NNEHLBRL S
BRAARAYIEHREBAERA BN
REBIRYIT

Perennial USA Inc.fiZ A o

REEZRB A AR A BN A B
IR o

New Technology Cable Pte. Limitedfiz
FOF AN -

Shinka K.KAZF B o

Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co., Limited
X New Technology Cable (Vietnam)
Limitediz ARG ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

30. Statement of Financial Position and 30. XA R ERIAREEESE
Reserve Movement of the Company *®

Statement of Financial Position B AR R R
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BfaE FET FiBT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEMENEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIE 62,738 62,738
Current assets MEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries U B A FIZIE 58,550 58,633
Other receivables, deposits EMEURGRIE - FTe Rk
and prepayments JENE 338 160
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 83 146
58,971 58,939
Total assets BEE 121,709 121,677
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to PN & ey
shareholders of the Company
Share capital [N 19,896 19,896
Other reserves H A (a) 78,537 78,637
Retained earnings REEF (a) 23,200 22,608
Total equity Rz 121,633 121,041
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables and accruals HAb R FIE R ER X 76 636
Total liabilities = 76 636
Total equity and liabilities BERRAAEE 121,709 121,677

RKRBZHBRARARR T —_F=H
THoAKEFEMAELRRESE -

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 22nd March 2022 and
was signed on its behalf.

MON Chung Hung SIU Yuk Shing, Marco

IR BB
Director Director
EEa EFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAaBRERMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE-ZFE-—F1+_HA=+—HIFE

30. Statement of Financial Position and 30. &2 ik R R #ES S
Reserve Movement of the Company

= (&)

(Continued) X
(a) Reserve Movement (a) fEEEF
Contributed Capital
Share surplus redemption Total other Retained
premium (note) reserves reserves earnings Total
EON: Ex
RIDEE (P&t BEfE AHOEE RERN #BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT T T THT T
At 1st January 2021  RZTZ—F
—H—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 22,608 101,145
Total comprehensive  AEE2E Rz
income for the year ~ #4%8 - - - - 592 592
At31stDecember ~ RZZE=—
2021 +-A=+—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 23,200 101,737
At 1st January 2020 RZZE-FF
—A—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 23,205 101,742
Total comprehensive  AEE 2T EE
loss for the year kA - - - - (597) (597)
At 31st December ~ H-Z-TE
2020 +ZA=+—AH 15,885 62,548 104 78,637 22,608 101,145
Note: The contributed surplus of the Company arose when Ky : AATZHABRBEARD T EBEITIR

the Company issued shares in exchange for the shares
of subsidiaries being acquired in connection with the
reorganisation of the Group prior to its listing on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and represents
the difference between the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued and the value of net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act
of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus is distributable to the shareholders. At Group
level, the contributed surplus is reclassified into its
component reserves of the underlying subsidiaries.

MIARIB SR AR BB BB
ERGAER AR LEHAEEARE
I i W BB 2 BT 8 A Bz Lt T 22
& HERARRBTRM ZHEE
HKEREB AR ZEEFELE
B REBEARE-NN—FQFE
(FEIEFT) - BABBRAIH DK TR
R EAREZER  MARRT
B BREBEMB AR Z #EAE
BRER S -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Subsequent Event

The war in Ukraine, new variant of COVID-19 “Omicron”
and strained Sino-US relations have brought additional
uncertainties to the Group's operating environment and might
impact the Group’s operations and financial position. The
Group will closely monitor the development of the evolving
Russia-Ukraine conflict, ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and
uneasy Sino-US relations, assess and actively respond to their
impact on the financial condition, operating results and other
aspects of the Group.

Approval of the Consolidated Financial

Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 22nd March 2022.

31.

32.

e MBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2021
BE T - —F+-A=1+—HIFEF

Hi& =18

S EEE - COVID-19¥ & k[ Omicron] &
PEBRER  AAEENEERESRE
ZTHEREZ (U AEENLERIE
MRIER T E - KREEBSZRY)E S HKEL R
SR EHNBFER - COVID- 19 1E1HE
DA EZREERERRE W% EEREN
HUAEBEYT BN CLEEERHEMA®E

mEe -

e PBRR ZHLE

GAMBRRECR - E-_—_F=A-+=-H
BEESHE -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Bt 15 #E 5

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--f CZEZTF ZZ-hF T-N\F Z—+F
Operating results REZEE(THET)
(HK$’000)
Revenue W 373,472 282,342 301,357 355,744 364,401
Operating profit/(loss) TESER/(F1R) 16,358 (19,697) (11,916) 1,726 26,461
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ ANFE &,/ (E518) 13,689 (19,231) (13,198) (1,760) 19,283
Financial position BN (FE )
(HK$°000)
Net current assets MEEEFE 149,896 116,263 130,939 133,146 169,387
Shareholders’ funds [EERES 569,058 549,280 562,524 578,085 562,417
Per share data (HK cent) & REE (GB4L)
Eamnings/(loss) per share - &&F,/(&1E)
basic and diluted —ERREE 6.9 (9.7) (6.6) (0.9 9.7
Dividend per share (interim &MAE (PE K
and final dividend) RERE) 2.0 - - - -
Key Statistics TER
Inventory turnover (days)  TFEEE(KE) 173 181 149 17 118
Debtors’ turnover (days)  FEMRERIE®E (KE) 67 90 104 88 81
Creditors’ turnover (days) — JE{JERE®EE (KE) 46 46 39 38 40
Acid-test ratio (%) RENLL (%) 90.4% 98.9% 119.3% 138.1% 174.6%
Working capital (%) EIEE®(%) 223.9% 220.6% 220.7% 220.1% 285.6%
Total liabilities/total capital 428 1& /44iE
employed (%) B (%) 27.9% 24.9% 27.1% 26.8% 23.2%
Return on capital employed & F3 & AREH &
(operating profit/ (EmF/
shareholders’ funds) (%)  BXEREE)(%) 2.9% (3.6%) (2.1%) 0.3% 4.7%
Return on average total TS E R
assets (profit after (BB ER,
taxation/average total FHBEE) (%)
assets) (%) 1.9% (2.7%) (1.8%) (0.2%) 2.9%
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